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FmHA Instruction 1942-A

(Guide 20)
AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES
(FmHA/EPA Jointly Funded Projects)
THIS Agreement, made this day of , 19 by and between

, hereafter referred to as the OWNER, and
, hereinafter referred to as the ENGINEER:

The OWNER intends to construct a Project consisting of

in County, State of , which may be paid for in part with financial assistance
from the United States of America acting through the Farmers Home Administration of the United States
Department of Agriculture, hereinafter referred to as FmHA, pursuant to the Consolidated Farm and Rural
Development Act (7 USC 1921 er seq.), and through the United States Environmental Protection Agency,
hereinafter referred to as EPA, pursuant to the Clean Water Act, as amended (33 USC. 1251 er seq.). Neither the
United States nor any of its departments, agencies, or employees is or will be a party to this Agreement or any
subagreement. The ENGINEER agrees to perform the various professional engineering services for the design
and construction of said Project in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement.

CONTENTS
SECTION A - GENERAL PROVISIONS SECTION B - ENGINEERING SERVICES

1. General Engineering Services During the Design

2. Approvals Phase

3. Responsibilities of the ENGINEER Engineering Services During the

4, Responsibilities of the OWNER Construction Phase

5. Changes Engineering Services During the

6. Termination of Contract Operation Phase

7. Payment

8. Project Design SECTION C - ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING

9. Audit and Access to Records SERVICES
10. Subcontracts
11. Insurance : SECTION D - SPECIAL PROVISIONS
12. Equal Employment Opportunity
13. Small, Minority and Women’s Businesses Attachment | - Compensation for Engineering
14. Data and Copyright Services During the Design Phase.
15. Gratuities Attachment IT - Compensation for Engineering
16. Covenant Against Contingent Fees Services During the Construction
17. Cost or Pricing Data Phase.
18. Remedies Attachment I1I - Compensation for Engineering
19. Energy Efficiency Services During the Operation
20, Assurance Against Debarment Phase.
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SECTION A - GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. General

(a) This Agreement represents the entire and
integrated Agreement between the OWNER and the
ENGINEER for the Project and supersedes all prior
negotiations, representations or agreements, either
written or oral. In the event any provisions of this
Agreement or any subsequent addendum shall be held
to be invalid and unenforceable, the remaining
provisions shall be valid and binding upon the parties.
One or more waivers by either party of any provision,
term, condition or covenant shall not be construed by
the other party as a waiver of a subsequent breach of
the same by the other party. The General Provisions
of this Agreement supersede any conflicting SPECIAL
PROVISIONS.

(b) The ENGINEER will cooperate and work
closely with FmHA, EPA and State representatives.

(c) The ENGINEER will attend conferences and
public hearings with the OWNER, representatives of
FmHA and EPA, or other interested parties and
provide assistance in connection with such
undertakings as may be reasonably necessary in
connection with this Project.

2. Approvals

(a) This Agreement shall not become effective until
approved by FmHA. Such approval shall be
evidenced by the signature of a duly authorized
representative of FmHA in the space provided in the
Attachments to this Agreement. The approval shall in
no way commit FmHA to render financial assistance
to the OWNER. FmHA is without liabitity for any
payment hereunder, but in the event such assistance
is provided, the approval shall signify that the
provisions of this Agreement are consistent with the
requirements of FmHA.

(b) Review or approval of documents by or for EPA
or FmHA under this Agreement is for administrative
purposes only and does not relieve the ENGINEER or
OWNER of their responsibilities to design, construct
and operate the Project as required under law,
regulations, permits and good management practices.

3. Responsibilities of the ENGINEER

(a) The ENGINEER shall be responsible for the
professional quality, technical accuracy, timely
completion, and the coordination of all design
drawings, specifications, reports, and other services

furnished by the ENGINEER under this Agreement.
If this Agreement involves environmental measures or
data generation, the ENGINEER shall comply with
EPA quality assurance requirements in 40 CFR
30.503. The ENGINEER shall keep the OWNER
informed of the performance of the ENGINEER’s
duties under this Agreement. The ENGINEER, shall
promptly and without additional compensation, correct
or revise any errors, omissions, or other deficiencies
in the design drawings, specifications, reports, and
other services.

(b) The ENGINEER shall perform the professional
services necessary to accomplish the work specified in
this Agreement, in accordance with this Agreement
and applicable EPA requirements in effect on the date
of execution of the EPA assistance agreement for this
Project.

(c) The OWNER’s, FmHA’s, or EPA’s review or
approval of design drawings, specifications, reports,
and other services furnished hereunder shall not in
any way relieve the ENGINEER of responsibility for
the technical adequacy of the work. Neither the
OWNER’s, FmHA’s, nor EPA’s review, approval or
acceptance of, nor payment for any of the services
shall be construed as a waiver of any rights under this
Agreement or of any cause of action arising out of the
performance of this Agreement.

(d) The ENGINEER shall be and shall remain
liable, in accordance with applicable law, for all
damages to the OWNER caused by the ENGINEER’s
negligent performance of any of the services furnished
under this Agreement, except for errors, ommissions
or other deficiencies to the extent attributable to the
OWNER or OWNER-furnished data. The
ENGINEER shall not be responsible for any time
delays in the Project caused by circumstances beyond
the ENGINEER’s control.

(e) The ENGINEER’s obligations under this clause
are in addition to the ENGINEER’s other express ot
implied assurances under this Agreement or State law
and in no way diminish any other rights that the
OWNER may have against the ENGINEER for faulty
materials, equipment, or work.

4. Responsibilities of the OWNER

(a) The OWNER shall designate in writing a person
authorized to act as the OWNER’s representative
The OWNER or its representative shall receive anc
examine documents submitted by the ENGINEER.



interpret and define the OWNER’s policies and render
decisions and authorizations promptly in writing.

(b) The OWNER shall provide to the ENGINEER
full and free access to enter upon all property required
for the performance of the ENGINEER’s services
under this Agreement.

5. Changes

(a) The OWNER may, at any time, with prior
approval of FmHA, by written order make changes
within the general scope of this Agreement in the
services or work to be performed. If such changes
cause an increase or decrease in the ENGINEER’s
cost or time required to perform any services under
this Agreement, whether or not changed by any order,
the OWNER shall make an equitable adjustment and
modify this Agreement in writing. The ENGINEER
must assert any claim for adjustment under this clause
in writing within thirty (30) days from the date it
receives the OWNER'’s notification of change, unless
the OWNER grants additional time before the date of
final payment.

(b) No services for which the ENGINEER will
charge an additional compensation shall be furnished
without the written authorization of the OWNER.

6. Termination of Contract

(a) This Agreement may be terminated in whole or
in part in writing by either party in the event of
substantial failure by the other party to fulfill its
obligations under this Agreement through no fault of
the terminating party, provided that no such
termination may be effected unless the other party is
given (1) not less than ten (10) calendar days written
notice (delivered by certified mail, return receipt
requested) of intent to terminate and (2) an
opportunity for consultation with the terminating party
before termination.

(b) This Agreement may be terminated in whole or
in part in writing by the OWNER for its convenience,
provided that the ENGINEER is given (1) not less
than ten (10) calendar days written notice (delivered
by certified mail, return receipt requested) of intent to
terminate, and (2) an opportunity for consultation
with the OWNER prior to termination.

(¢) If termination for default is effected by the
OWNER, an equitable adjustment in the price
provided for in this Agreement shall be made, but (1)
no amount shall be allowed for anticipated profit on
unperformed services or other work, and (2) any
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payment due to the ENGINEER at the time of
termination may be adjusted to cover any additional
costs to the OWNER because of the ENGINEER’s
default. If termination for default is effected by the
ENGINEER, or if termination for convenience is
effected by the OWNER, the equitable adjustment
shall include a reasonable profit for services or other
work performed. The equitable adjustment for any
termination shall provide for payment to the
ENGINEER for services rendered and expenses
incurred prior to the termination, in addition to
termination settlement costs reasonably incurred by
the ENGINEER relating to commitments which had
become firm prior to the termination.

(d) Upon receipt of a termination action under
paragraphs (a) or (b) above, the ENGINEER shall (1)
promptly discontinue all affected work (uniess the
notice directs otherwise), and (2) deliver or otherwise
make available to the OWNER within ten (10) days
copies of all data, design drawings, specifications,
reports, estimates, summaries and such other
information and materials as may have been
accumulated by the ENGINEER in performing this
Agreement, whether completed or in process.

(e) Upon termination under paragraphs (a) or (b)
above, the OWNER may take over the work and may
award another party an Agreement to complete the
work under this Agreement.

(f) 1If, after termination for failure of the
ENGINEER to fuifill contractual obligations, it is
determined that the ENGINEER had not failed to
fullfill contractual obligations, the termination shall be
deemed to have been for the convenience of the
OWNER. In such event, adjustment of the
Agreement price shall be made as provided in
paragraph (c) of this clause.

7. Payment

(a) The ENGINEER will submit to the OWNER for
services rendered an itemized bill showing charges for
such services accompanied by any additional
documentation requested by the OWNER.

(b) Payments for ENGINEERING SERVICES

' during the Design Phase (Section B-1 through B-9 of

this Agreement) are due and payabie in accordance
with the following:

1. Twenty five percent (25%) of the firm fixed
price set forth in Attachment I when (1) the
design drawings and specifications are fifty
percent (50%) complete and (2) the
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OWNER, as a potential EPA grant recipient,
has received an advance of allowance for
Project design from the State.

2. Ninety five percent (95%) of the firm fixed
price set forth in Attachment I upon
submission and acceptance by the OWNER of
design drawings and specifications in a
condition suitable for bidding purposes.

3. One hundred percent (100%) of the firm
fixed price set forth in Attachment I upon
award of construction contracts.

(c) Payments for ENGINEERING SERVICES
during the Construction Phase (Section B-11 through
B-22 of this Agreement) are due and payable monthly
based on percent ratios identical to those approved by
the ENGINEER as a basis upon which to make partial
payments to the contractor(s).

(d) Payments for ENGINEERING SERVICES
during the Operation Phase (Section B-24 through B-
27 of this Agreement) are due and payable monthly
based on one twelfth (1/12) of the firm fixed price set
forth in Attachment 111

(e) Payment for ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING
SERVICES (Section C of this Agreement) performed
in accordance with this Agreement are due and
payable in accordance with the following:

1. Monthly partial payments for firm fixed price
Resident Project Inspection based on percent
ratios identical to those approved by the
ENGINEER as a basis upon which to make
partial payments to the contractor(s), or

2. One hundred percent (100%) of the firm
fixed price upon completion and acceptance
by the OWNER of a completed
ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICE,
except as provided in 1 above, or

3. One hundred percent (100%) of monthly
Cost Plus Fixed Fee or Per Diem invoices.

(f) No payment request made under this clause
shall exceed the estimated amount and value of the
work and services performed by the ENGINEER
under this Agreement. The ENGINEER shall prepare
the estimates of work performed and shall supplement
them with such supporting data as the OWNER may
require.

(g) Upon satisfactory completion of the work

performed under this Agreement, as a condition

before final payment under this Agreement or as a
termination settlement under this Agreement the
ENGINEER shall execute and deliver to the OWNER
a release of all claims against the OWNER arising
under, or by virtue of, this Agreement, except claims
which are specifically exempted by the ENGINEER to
be set forth therein. Unless otherwise provided in this
Agreement, by State law or otherwise expressly agreed
to by the parties to this Agreement, final payment
under this Agreement or settlement upon termination
of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of the
OWNER’s claims against the ENGINEER or its
sureties under this Agreement or applicable
performance and payment bonds.

(h) Final payment under this Agreement or
settiement upon termination of this Agreement shall
not constitute a waiver of the OWNER’s claims
against the ENGINEER under this Agreement.

8. Project Design

(a) Unless otherwise approved by the OWNER and
FmHA, the ENGINEER shall specify materials,
equipment, and processes which are readily available
through competitive procurement and consistent with
EPA and FmHA regulations.

(b) Where this Agreement exceeds $100,000, the
ENGINEER shall comply with all applicable standards,
orders, or requirements issued under section 306 of
the Clean Air Act (42 USC 1857(h)), section 508 of
the Clean Water Act (33 USC 1368), Executive Order
11738, and EPA regulations (40 CFR Part 15) which
prohibit the awarding of nonexempt Federal contracts,
grants, or loans 1o facilities included on EPA’s List of
Violating Facilities. The ENGINEER will report
violations to the EPA.

(c) Project design criteria should be consistent with
the criteria set forth in the Facilities Plan that meets
the requirements of 40 CFR Part 35.

9. Audit and Access to Records

(a) The ENGINEER shall maintain books, records,
documents, and other evidence directly pertinent to
performance on work under this Agreement in
accordance with -~ generally accepted accounting
principles and practices consistently applied, and EPA
and FmHA regulations in effect on the date of
execution of this Agreement. The ENGINEER shall
also maintain the financial information and data used
by the ENGINEER in the preparation of support of
the cost submission required under EPA regulations
in effect on the date of execution for any negotiated
agreement or amendment thereof and a copy of the
cost summary submitted to the OWNER. The EPA,



the FmHA, the Comptroller General of the United
States, the U.S. Department of Labor, OWNER, and
the State water pollution control agency or any of their
duly authorized representatives shall have access to
such books, records, documents, and other evidence
for inspection, audit, and copying during normal
business hours. The ENGINEER will provide proper
facilities for such access and inspection.

(b) The ENGINEER agrees to make paragraphs (a)
through (f) applicable to all agreements it awards in
excess of $10,000, at any tier, and to make paragraphs
(a) through (f) of this clause applicable to all
amendments directly related to Project performance.

(c) Audits conducted under this provision shall be
in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards and established procedures and guidelines of
the reviewing or audit agency(ies) and the General
Accounting Office.

(d) The ENGINEER agrees to disclose all
information and reports resulting from access to
records under paragraphs (a) and (b) of this clause to
any of the agencies referred to in paragraph (a).

{e) Records under paragraphs (a) and (b) above
shall be maintained and made availabie by the
ENGINEER during performance of services under this
Agreement and for three (3) years from the date of
final Federal assistance payment to the OWNER for
the Project. In addition; those records which relate to
any controversy arising under this Agreement,
litigation, the settlement of claims arising out of such
performance or to costs or items to which an audit
exception has been taken shall be maintained and
made available by the ENGINEER until three (3)
years after the date of resolution of such appeal,
litigation, claim or exception.

(f) This right of access clause applies to financial
records pertaining to all agreements (except formally
advertised, competitively awarded, fixed price
agreements) and all agreement amendments regardless
of the type of agreement. In addition this right of
access applies to all records pertaining to all
agreements and agreement amendments:

1. to the extent the records pertain directly to
Agreement performance; or

2. if there is any indication that fraud, gross
abuse or corrupt practices may be involved;
or

3. if the Agreement is terminated for default or
for convenience.
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10. Subcontracts

(a) Any subcontractors and outside associates or
consultants required by the ENGINEER in connection
with services under this Agreement will be limited to
such individuals or firms as were specificaily identified
and agreed to during negotiations, or as the OWNER
specifically authorizes during the performance of this
Agreement. The OWNER must give prior approval
for any substitutions, additions or deletions to such
subcontractors, associates, or consultants.

(b) The ENGINEER may not subcontract services
in excess of thirty (30) percent of the contract price to
subcontractors or consultants without the OWNER’s
prior written approval.

(¢) The ENGINEER shall comply with the
provisions of 40 CFR Part 33, Subpart B, Section
33.295, when subcontracting for services performed
under this Agreement if procured after an award of an
EPA grant for this Project.

11. Insurance

The ENGINEER further agrees to obtain and
mantain, at the ENGINEER’s expense, such
insurance as will protect the ENGINEER from claims
under the Workman’s Compensation Act and such
comprehensive general liability insurance as will
protect the OWNER and the ENGINEER from all
claims for bodily injury, death, or property damage
which may arise from the performance by the
ENGINEER or by the ENGINEER’s employees of the
ENGINEER’s functions and services required under
this Agreement.

12. Equal Employment Opportunity

The ENGINEER shall comply with Executive Order
11246, entitled "Equal Employment Opportunity," as
amended by Executive Order 11375, and as
supplemented in Department of Labor regulations 41
CFR Part 60.

13. Small, Minority, and Women’s Businesses

The ENGINEER agrees to take affirmative steps to
assure that small, minority, and women’s businesses
are utilized when possible as sources of supplies,
equipment, construction and services. Affirmative
steps shall include:

(a) Including qualified small, minority and women’s
businesses on solicitation lists.
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(b) Assuring that small, minority and women’s
businesses are solicited whenever they are potential
sources.

(c) When economically feasible, dividing total
requirements into smailer tasks or quantities so as to
permit maximum small, minority and women’s
businesses participation.

(d) " Where the requirement permits, establishing
delivery schedules which will encourage participation
by small, minority and women’s businesses.

(e) Using the services and assistance of the Small
Business Administration and the Minority Business
Development Agency of the Department of
Commerce.

14. Data and Cepyrights

This Agreement is subject to EPA requirements and
regulations pertaining to copyrights and rights in data
contained in 40 CFR Part 30, which covers items such
as research, developmental, experimental or
demonstration work with respect to any discovery or
invention which arises or is developed in the course of
or under this Agreement.

15. Gratuities

(a) If the OWNER finds after a notice and hearing
that the ENGINEER or any of the ENGINEER’s
agents or representatives offered or gave gratuities (in
the form of entertainment, gifts, or otherwise), to any
official, employee, or agent of the OWNER, the State,
EPA or FmHA in an attempt to secure this
Agreement or favorable treatment in awarding,
amending or making any determinations related to the
performance of this Agreement, the OWNER may, by
written notice to the ENGINEER, terminate this
Agreement. The OWNER may also pursue other
rights and remedies that the law or this Agreement
provides. However, the existence of the facts on
which the OWNER bases such findings shall be in
issue and may be reviewed in proceedings under the
Remedies clause of this Agreement.

(b) In the event this Agreement is terminated as
provided in paragraph (a), the OWNER may pursue
the same remedies against the ENGINEER as it could
pursue in the event of a breach of the Agreement by
the ENGINEER. As a penalty, in addition to any
other damages to which it may be entitled by law, the
OWNER may pursue exemplary damages in an
amount (as determined by the OWNER) which shall
be not less than three nor more than ten times the

costs the ENGINEER incurs in providing any such
gratuities to any such officer or employee.

16. Covenant Against Contingent Fees

The ENGINEER assures that no person or selling
agency has been employed or retained to solicit or
secure this Agreement upon an agreement or
understanding for a commission, percentage,
brokerage, or contingent fee, excepting bona fide
employees or bona fide established commercial or
selling agencies maintained by the ENGINEER for the
purpose of securing business. For breach or violation
of this assurance the OWNER shall have the right to
annul this Agreement without liability or, at its
discretion, to deduct from the contract price or
consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount
of such commisison, percentage, brokerage, or
contingent fees.

17. Cost of Pricing Data

The ENGINEER and its subcontractor(s) assure that
cost and pricing data submitted for evaluation with
respect to negotiation of prices for negotiated
agreements, lower tier subagreements, or amendments
are based on current, accurate, and complete data
supported by their books and records. If the
OWNER, EPA or FmHA determines that any price
(including profit) negotiated in connection with this
Agreement, any lower tier subagreement, or any
amendment thereunder was increased by any
significant sums because the data provided was
incomplete, inaccurate, or not current at the time of
submission, then such price or cost or profit shall be
reduced accordingly, and this Agreement shall be
modified in writing to reflect such action. Failure to
agree on a reduction shall be subject to the Remedies
clause of this Agreement.

18. Remedies

Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, all
claims, counter-claims, disputes, and other matters in
question between the OWNER and the ENGINEER
arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the
breach of it will be decided by arbitration if the parties
mutually agree, or in a court of competent jurisdiction
within the State in which the OWNER is located.

19. Energy Efficiency

The ENGINEER shall follow mandatory standards and
policies relating to energy efficiency which are
contained in the State energy conservation plan issued
in compliance with the Energy Policy and
Conservation Act (P.L. 94-163).



20. Assurance Against Debarment

The ENGINEER assures that neither it nor any of its
subcontractors are suspended or debarred by EPA or
FmHA.

SECTION B - ENGINEERING SERVICES

The ENGINEER shall furnish ENGINEERING
SERVICES as follows in accordance with the
GENERAL PROVISIONS of the Agreement and as
authorized by the appropriate Attachment to this
Agreement:

Engineering Services During the Design Phase

1. The ENGINEER shall complete the
ENGINEERING SERVICES described in
Section B-1 through B-9 described herein
within calendar days from the
date of written authorization to proceed
unless otherwise mutually agreed to in writing
by both parties. Any supporting
documentation or revisions regarding the
ENGINEER’s services under this Agreement
neccessary to obtain the approval of FmHA,
EPA and all State regulatory agencies will be
provided promptly.

2. The ENGINEER shall perform the necessary
design surveys, accomplish the detailed
design of the Project, prepare contract
documents including design  drawings,
specifications and invitations for bids, and
prepare a final opinion of probable Project
cost based on the final design of the Project.
The design drawings prepared shall be in
sufficient detail to show the character and
extent of the Project and to permit the actual
location of the proposed improvements on
the Project site. It is also understood that if
subsurface explorations such as borings, or
soil tests are required to determine amounts
of rock excavation or foundation conditions,
the ENGINEER will furnish coordination of
said explorations without additional charge,
but the costs incident to such explorations,
no matter whether they are performed by the
ENGINEER or by others shall be paid for by
the OWNER as indicated in Section C and set
out in Attachnent I.

3. The ENGINEER shall review the Facilities
Plan prepared for this Project and, if
necessary and upon consultation with and
concurrence of the OWNER, FmHA and
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EPA or delegated State as appropriate, shall
revise design criteria, design standards,
treatment process sizing and other appropriate
preliminary design information included in
the Facilities Plan or other preliminary
engineering reports in order to complete the
final design for the Project in accordance with
the performance standards and accepted
engineering practices.

. The ENGINEER shall assist the OWNER in

obtaining necessary permits and approvals
from appropriate Federal, State, and local
regulatory agencies. The cost of obtaining
such permits and approvals shall be borne by
the OWNER.

. The Contract Documents furnished by the

ENGINEER under Section B-2 shall utilize
FmHA-endorsed construction contract
documents.

. Prior to the advertisement for bids, the

ENGINEER shall provide for each
construction contract to be awarded by the
OWNER, ten (10) copies of detailed design
drawings,  specifications, and contract
documents for use by the OWNER and
appropriate Federal, State and local agencies
from whom approval of the Project must be
obtained. Additional copies of the above
specified documents shall be provided to the
OWNER by the ENGINEER at production
cost. Originals of such items as documents,
survey notes, and tracings, prepared by the
ENGINEER are and shall remain the
property of the ENGINEER, but this shall in
no way infringe upon the OWNER’s rights to
such items under Section A-6(e).

. The ENGINEER shall establish baselines for

locating the work together with a suitable
number of bench marks adjacent to the work
and show their location in the Contract
Documents. This information and the
Contract Documents will provide the
contractor sufficient reference from which to
execute the contract work. The ENGINEER
is not obligated to set construction grade
stakes for the construction of the Project.

. The ENGINEER shall prepare and furnish to

the OWNER three (3) copies of maps or
drawings showing the approximate location of
needed construction easements, permanent
easements, rights-of-way and land to be



FmHA Instruction 1942-A
(Guide 20)
Page 8

acquired. Such maps or drawings shall be
furnished promptly to enable the OWNER to
initiate property and easement acquisitions.

9. The ENGINEER shall, prior to completion of
ninety (90) percent of the Design Phase
service prepare and furnish to the OWNER
an estimate for total compensation to be paid
the ENGINEER for providing the services, to
be performed in the Construction Phase and
Operation Phase.

10.Section B-1 through B-9 and those
ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES
designated for the Design Phase in Section C

will take effect upon execution of Attachment
I

Engineering Services During the Construction
Phase

11. Performance of the services requested during
this phase will be initiated by the ENGINEER
promptly after execution of Attachment 1I
and the OWNER, with the concurrence of
FmHA, issues a written authorization to
proceed.

12. The ENGINEER shall aitend the bid opening
and tabulate the bid proposals, analyze the
responsiveness of the bidders and make
recommendations for awarding contract(s) for
construction to the lowest responsible,
responsive bidder.

13.Upon award of each construction contract,
the ENGINEER shall furnish to the
OWNER, for each contract, __(not less
than seven) sets of the design drawings,
specifications and contract documents for
execution by the OWNER and contractor.
Additional copies of such contract documents
shall be provided to the OWNER by the
ENGINEER at production cost.

14.The ENGINEER shall review and approve,
for conformance with the design concept all
shop drawings and other submittals required
by the Contract Documents to be furnished
by contractors.

15. The ENGINEER shall interpret the intent of
the design drawings and specifications to
protect the OWNER against defects and
deficiencies in construction on the part of the
contractors.

16.The ENGINEER shall provide general
engineering review of the work of the
contractors as consiruction progresses to
ascertain that the contractors are conforming
with the design concept.

17.The ENGINEER’s undertaking hereunder
shall not relieve the contractor of its
obligation to perform the work in conformity
with the Contract Docments and in a
workmanlike manner; nor shall it make the
ENGINEER an insurer of the contractor’s
performance; and shall not impose upon the
ENGINEER any obligations to see that the
work is performed in a safe manner.

18.The ENGINEER shall review each
contractor’s applications for progress and final
payments and submit sufficient copies of
same to the OWNER with the ENGINEER’s
recommendation for approval or disapproval.

19. The ENGINEER shall prepare necessary
contract change orders for approval of the
OWNER, FmHA and others as required.

20.The ENGINEER shall make an inspection
prior to issuing the certificate of substantial
completion of all construction and submit a
written report to the OWNER, FmHA and
others as required.

21. Prior to submission of recommendation for
final payment on each contract, the
ENGINEER shall submit a certificate of
substantial completion of work done under
that contract tc the OWNER, FmHA and
others as required.

22.The ENGINEER shall provide the OWNER
with one set of reproducible record (as-built)
drawings, and two sets of prints. Such
drawings will be based upon the resident
project inspector’s construction data and the
construction records provided by the
contractor during construction and reviewed
by the resident inspector.

23.Section B-11 through B-22 and those
ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES
designated for the Construction Phase in
Section C will take effect upon execution of
Attachment II.



Engineering Services During the Operation Phase

24. The ENGINEER shall direct the first year’s
operation of the Project and revise the
operation and maintenance manual for the
Project as necessary to accommodate actual
operating experience.

25.The ENGINEER shall provide to the
OWNER monthly operation reports on the
performance of the Project.

26.The ENGINEER shall train operating
personnel and prepare curricula and training
material for operating personnel.

77.Fleven (11) months after the initiation of the
Project operation the ENGINEER shall advise
the OWNER in writing whether the Project
meets the project performance standards as
defined in 40 CFR Part 35 Subpart L.

28.Section B-24 through B-27 and those
ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES
designated for the Operation Phase in Section
C will take effect upon execution of
Attachment 11

Section C - ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING
SERVICES

The following designated ADDITIONAL
ENGINEERING SERVICES shall be provided by the
ENGINEER upon written authorization by the
OWNER and concurrence of FmHA. Agreed upon
ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES will be
designated by Design Phase (D), Construction Phase
(C) or Operations Phase (O) during which the service
would be performed. Compensation for performing
the designated ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING
SERVICES will be included on Attachment I,
Attachment II, or Attachment III

Phase

1. Provide Resident Project Inspection.
The ENGINEER shall, prior to the
preconstruction conference, submit a
resume of the resident inspector’s
qualifications, anticipated duties and
responsibilities for approval by the
OWNER and FmHA. Resident
inspection includes checking lines and
grades, keeping rtecords of full
measurements and the contractor’s
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activities, passing information between
the ENGINEER and contractor,
reviewing of contractor’s request for
progress payments, inspecting of
completed work. for compliance with
Contract Documents and keeping of a
daily diary per FmHA requirements.
Performance of this service will not
guarantee the contractor’s
performance, but it endeavors to
protect the OWNER against defects
and deficiencies in the Project and
verify compliance with the contract
Documents. Period of service for
calculating compensation will be the
longest construction contract
completion time bid plus (thirty) 30
days.

Prepare site surveys for sewage
treatment works, dams, reservoirs,
and other similar special surveys as
may be required.

Conduct laboratory tests, well tests,
borings, and specialized geological,
soils, hydraulic, or other studies
recommended by the ENGINEER.

Prepare property surveys, detailed
descriptions of sités, maps, drawings,
or estimates related thereto; assist in
negotiating for land and easement
rights.

Appear before courts or boards on
matters of litigation related to the
project.

Assist with a user charge system.

(a) Design a user charge system to
produce adequate revenues required
for the operation, maintenance and
replacement of the Project that meets
applicable EPA requirements, or

(b) Demonstrate that the existing
user charge system meets applicable
EPA requirements.

Assist with sewer use ordinances.

(a) Prepare a sewer use ordinance
or other legally binding document that
meets applicable EPA requiremenis,
or
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(b) Demonstrate that the existing
sewer use ordinance meets applicable
EPA requirements.

8. Prepare an operation and maintenance
manual that meets applicable EPA
requirements before the construction
of the project is 90 percent complete.

9. Prepare a sewer system evaluation and
infiltration/inflow analysis. Perform a
study that meets applicable EPA
requirements of the sewer system to
determine the quantity of excessive
infiltration/inflow and propose a sewer
rehabilitation program that meets
applicable EPA requirements to
eliminate the portion of infiltration
and inflow that is excessive.

10. Conduct value engineering of the

11.

Project design and prepare a report
that meets applicable EPA
requirements.

Prepare a draft plan of operation that
meets applicable EPA requirements
for submission to EPA with the grant
application and a satisfactory final plan
of operation for submission to EPA
before fifty (50) percent of the
construction of the Project is
complete.

12. Provide construction staking services.

13. Other (attach definition),

SECTION D - SPECIAL PROVISIONS
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ATTACHMENT 1 - Compensation for Engineering Services During the Design Phase

1. As set forth in the AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES dated the
day of , 19 , by and between

the OWNER, and

, the ENGINEER, the OWNER and ENGINEER

agree this day of , 19 , that the OWNER shall compensate the ENGINEER
for services described in Section B-1 through B-9 and Section C designated Design Phase services.

2. Compensation for ENGINEERING SERVICES shall be by a FIRM FIXED PRICE METHOD. The FIRM
FIXED PRICE is:

$

3. Compensation for ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES, shall be by a FIRM FIXED PRICE METHOD,
COST PLUS FIXED FEE METHOD or in exceptional circumstances PER DIEM METHOD for each individual
ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICE. An Exhibit to this Attachment describes, for each ADDITIONAL
ENGINEERING SERVICE, the FIRM FIXED PRICE AMOUNT, COST PLUS FIXED FEE cost summary or
PER DIEM cost schedule and cost summary. The total amount of compensation for ADDITIONAL
ENGINEERING SERVICES shall not exceed:

$

4. The amount of compensation shall not change unless the scope of services to be provided by the ENGINEER
changes and this Agreement is formally amended according to Section A-5.

S. Signatures

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed, or caused to be executed by their duly authorized
officials, this Agreement in duplicate on the respective dates indicated below.

OWNER:
ATTEST: By
Type Name Type Name
Title Title
Date Date
ENGINEER:
ATTEST: By
Type Name Type Name
Title Title
Date Date
APPROVED:
FARMERS HOME ADMINISTRATION
By
Type Name
Title
Date

(9-21-83) PN 897
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ATTACHMENT 11 - Compensation for Engineering Services During the Construction Phase

1. As set forth in the AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES dated the
day of , 19 , by and between

the OWNER, and

, the ENGINEER, the OWNER and ENGINEER agree this
day of , 19 , that the OWNER shall compensate the ENGINEER for

services described in Section B-11 through B-22 and Section C designated Construction Phase services.

2. Compensation for ENGINEERING SERVICES shall be by a FIRM FIXED PRICE METHOD. The FIRM
FIXED PRICE is:

$

3. Compensation for ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES, shalt be by a FIRM FIXED PRICE METHOD,
COST PLUS FIXED FEE METHOD or in exceptional circumstances PER DIEM METHOD for each individual
ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICE. An Exhibit to this Attachment describes, for each ADDITIONAL
ENGINEERING SERVICE the FIRM FIXED PRICE AMOUNT, COST PLUS FIXED FEE cost summary or
PER DIEM cost schedule and cost summary. The total amount of compensation for ADDITIONAL
ENGINEERING SERVICES shall not exceed:

S

4. The amount of compensation shall not change unless the scope of services to be provided by the ENGINEER
changes and this Agreement is formally amended according to Section A-S.

5. Signatures

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed, or caused to be executed by their duly authorized
officials, this Agreement in duplicate on the respective dates indicated.below.

OWNER:
ATTEST: By
Type Name Type Name
Title Title
Date Date
ENGINEER:
ATTEST: By
Type Name Type Name
Title Title
Date Date
APPROVED:
FARMERS HOME ADMINISTRATION
By
Type Name
Title
Date
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ATTACHMENT III - Compensation for Engineering Services During the Operation Phase

1. As set forth in the AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES dated the
day of , 19 , by and between

the OWNER, and

, the ENGINEER, the OWNER and ENGINEER

agree this day of , 19 , that the OWNER shall compensate the ENGINEER
for services described in Section B-24 through B-27 and Section C designated Operation Phase services.

2. Compensation for ENGINEERING SERVICES shall be by a FIRM FIXED PRICE METHOD. THE FIRM
FIXED PRICE is:

$

3. Compensation for ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES, shall be by a FIRM FIXED PRICE METHOD,
COST PLUS FIXED FEE METHOD or in exceptional circumstances PER DIEM METHOD for each individual
ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICE. An Exhibit to this Attachment describes, for each ADDITIONAL
ENGINEERING SERVICE, the FIRM FIXED PRICE AMOUNT, COST PLUS FIXED FEE cost summary or

PER DIEM cost schedule and cost summary. The total amount of compensation for ADDITIONAL
ENGINEERING SERVICES shall not exceed:

$

4. The amount of compensation shall not change unless the scope of services to be provided by the ENGINEER
changes and this Agreement is formally amended according to Section A-5.

5. Signatures

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed, or caused to be executed by their duly authorized
officials, this Agreement in duplicate on the respective dates indicated below.

OWNER:
ATTEST: By
Type Name Type Name
Title Title
Date Date
ENGINEER:
ATTEST: By
Type Name Type Name
Title Title
Date Date
APPROVED:
FARMERS HOME ADMINISTRATION
By
Type Name
Title
Date
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REVIEW OF AUDIT REPORTS
DESK REVIEW GUIDE
FOR AUDITS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
OMB CIRCULARS A-128 AND A-133

(Instructions)
Contents
Pages
Part 1 Instructions 1- 8
Part 1A Work Guide 1- 6

Part 1B OMB Pubication 1-12

PURPOSE: The purpose of this desk review guide is to provide a structured
approach to the analysis process in order to determine that audit reports meet
the requirements of Government Auditing Standards (1988 Revision), often
referred to as Generally Accepted Govermment Auditing Standards (GAGAS) and
certain OMB circulars. This guide is also designed to help identify and
record deficiencies in borrower operations, and provide consistency of
analysis for the entities required to submit audits.

APPLICABILITY: This guide is intended for use by Community and Business
Programs (C&BP) personnel when making desk reviews of audits performed in
accordance with OMB Circulars A-128 "Audits of State and Local Governments"
and A-133 "Audits of Institutions of Higher Educations and Other Nonprofit
Organizations." Audits performed in accordance with OMB Circular A-110 will
not be reviewed with this Desk Review Guide. For A-110 audits use the Desk
Review Guide (FmHA/GAGAS Audits (For Gross Annual Income)), Part 2 of this
guide.

DESCRIPTION: This guide was designed, to the extent possible, to be a self-
contained document, by asking questions to support the results of the desk
review. The questions are organized by categories, with four possible answers
to each question. They are: Not Applicable (N/A), (YES), (NO), and Reference
(REF). When checking the REF column, the appropriate guestion number should
be entered at the bottom of the page and an explanatory note made. However,
any note should be made, which aids in the analysis process, and further
supports the review, even if no followup is required.

The grouping of questions are as follows:
QUESTION NO.

o Auditor’s use of GAGAS 1

o Auditor’s Reports (Opinions) 2-3
o Financial Statements ’ » 4-6
o Notes to the Financial Statements 7-8
o Financial Analysis Items 9-12

0 Reviewer's knowledge which could be
pertinent to the audit 13-14

(03-20-91) PN 160
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All questions should be answered, giving consideration to the information
obtained from borrower and auditor interviews, and telephone conversations.
Page 4 of this part (desk review guide) provides a place to record the overall
results of the review. The guide should remain attached to the audit
reviewed, together with all correspondence, notes on telephone calls, etc.
{DOCUMENT THE FILE).

The FmHA Audit Program (December 1989) contains a list of pertinent auditing
publications, commonly used abbreviations, and FmHA regulations for the
various financial assistance programs.

Reference Helps For Questions

(:) Name only required for guaranteed loans.
(2) RCFTS Screen CPO4.

(:) See Part 1B of this guide for OMB assignments of Cognizant and Oversight
Agencies for A-128 audits. At the bottom of the middle column on
page 552 of the Federal Register are the OMB assignments for General
Oversight Agencies. However, there are instances where an Oversight
Agency for a Special District is different from the Cognizant Agency
assignment for the County in which the Special District is located.
In these situations you should contact the Cognizant Agency to
determine whether the Cognizant or Oversight Agency is to serve the
Special District for audit purposes. Example: EPA has General
Oversight for all Water and Sewer Districts. In Clinton County
Iowa, HHS is Cognizant. If FmHA has provided financial assistance
to a Water and Sewer District in Clinton county and an A-128 audit is
required, you should contact HHS to determine who is to administer
the provisions of OMB Circular A-128.

(:) Upon completion of the review, the final results should be recorded.
The "acceptable/unacceptable” conclusion of the review process refers
to the audit and its presentation and the results of FmHA's analysis
of the borrower’s operation.

(:) Also referred to as Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards
(GAGAS) and U.S. General Accounting Office (GAO) "Yellow Book,"
(1988 Revision). The use of this publication may or may not be
referred to in the auditor’s report (opinion) on the financial
statements. However, if used, this will always be noted in the
Supplemental Reports covered in item 3 on page 5 of this part (desk
review guide).

(:) The auditor’s opinion letter will include statements to answer these
questions. The acronyms GAAS and GAAP will not appear but the words
will be spelled out. :

(:) GAGAS requires separate reports on internal controls and compliance.
OMB Circulars A-128 and A-133 also require additional reports on
internal controls and compliance. This means that for OMB circular
audits, there must be two reports on internal control and two
reports on compliance, i.e., one each for GAGAS and one each for the
OMB circulars.
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The auditor’'s opinion letter on the financial statements will state
whether or not Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) were used.
Note: Comparative financial statements are not a requirement of GAGAS or
OMB circular audits. However, borrowers should be encouraged to
have their auditors prepare comparative type financial statements
since they assist in the analysis process.

(:) For most government entities the audit should contain the financial
statements as titled. However, certain entities will only have
one activity (Fund) such as a Water District, and will not have
multiple balance sheets, etc.

Cash Flow statements only required for audits on or after 1-1-89.

®®

Non-GAAP financial statements will usually be presented on the "cash
basis" which will be noted in the auditors opinion letter.
Note: Some public bodies, because of legal requirement, such as
population criteria, are not legally required to publish accrual
basis financial statements. Also some small nonprofit organizations
may present their financial statements on the cash receipts and
disbursements basis and the auditor will say in the opinion letter
that the "... financial statements referred to above present fairly
.." These presentations are acceptable to FmHA.

(:b (CFDA) is the Code of Federal Domestic Assistance Catalog. Refer to
the FmHA Audit Program (December 1989) for the CFDA numbers which
apply to the various programs. These are to be identified in the
schedule by the auditor.

(:) The discovery of indications of fraud, waste, abuse or illegal
acts in the FmHA financed projects should normally have been
reported in writing to the appropriate USDA OIG Regional Inspector
General and the FmHA District Director prior to the published audit
report.

(:) Statements on plans for corrective actions and management decisions
are requirements of the OMB circulars.

(:) The financial analysis items are not all inclusive but listed in

broad categories. You should note all specifics for items which you
believe require followup.

(03-20-91) PN 160
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DESK REVIEW GUIDE
FOR AUDITS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
OMB CIRCULARS A-128 AND A-133
o Organization Name:

o City County

o Type of Organization: /7 Public Body /7 Indian Tribe /7 Nonprofit

TYPE OF 1LOAN

o Type of Assistance: /7 Grant [7 Direct [ 7 Guaranteed*

<:¥Name and Address of Lender:

Audit Period: To
TYPE OF AUDIT
(:)Date Data Entered
Reguired Received Date Due¥* Date Received in RCFTS
/ / A-128 L/
L7 A-133 [T
(other)

**Thirteen months from end of fiscal year.

(} Name of: / / Cognizant Agency / / Oversight Agency / / N/A
Yes No N/A

o Letter received from Cog./Oversight Agency?

o Does letter require FmHA followup?

o Did we follow through to completion?
(attach all above correspondence)

(4) AS A RESULT OF THIS REVIEW, I HAVE REACHED THE FOLLOWING CONCLUSION:
/—7 Acceptable and requires no followup.
/7 Acceptable with minor followup with (auditor)/(borrower)

/7 Unacceptable due to significant inadequacies.
(will require letter to auditor and/or borrower)

NOTE: Attach copies of all correspondence to and from borrower/auditor,
record of telephone conversations, etc., on followup action.

SIGNATURE OF REVIEWER TITLE DATE
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(5) 1. DID AUDITOR USE GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
(GAGAS)?

(6) 2. AUDITOR’S REPORT ON FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (OPINION):

NOTE: A-128 AND A-133 DO NOT REQUIRE THE

PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING
PRINCIPLES (GAAP). HOWEVER, IF THERE IS A
VARIANCE FROM GAAP, THE AUDIT REPORT SHOULD
STATE THE NATURE OF THE VARIANCE AND FOLLOW
PROFESSIONAL GUIDANCE FOR' REPORTING ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

AUDIT CONDUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY
ACCEPTED AUDITING STANDARDS (GAAS);

STATEMENTS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

' GEMERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES (GAAP);

STATEMENTS PREPARED ON A BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
OTHER THAN GAAP (I.E., CASH, MODIFIED CASH); and

o DOES AUDITOR SUFFICIENTLY DESCRIBE THIS OTHER
BASIS?

IS OPINION OR DISCLAIMER EXPRESSED?

o IF QUALIFIED, IS IT CLEAR WHICH FINDINGS
RESULT IN THE QUALIFICATION?

(7) 3. AUDITOR'S SUPPLEMENTAL REPORTS (OPINIONS) ON:

REFERENCE

INTERNAL CONTROLS IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS;

INTERNAL CONTROLS IN ACCORDANCE WITH A-128/A-133;
(CIRCLE ONE)

COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS;

COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH A-128/A-133; and
(CIRCLE ONE)

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
A-128/A-133. (CIRCLE ONE)

(Page 5)

N/A YES NO REF

NOTES: (DETAIL FOR DEFICIENCIES, FOLLOWUP ACTIONS, ETC.)

(03-20-91)
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FINANCTAL STATEMENTS: N/A YES NO REF

4, TIF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE PREPARED IN
'(®)(9) ACCORDANCE WITH GAAP, ARE THE FOLLOWING INCLUDED:

A-128 GOVE NT ENTITIES

a. COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES AND
ACCOUNT GROUPS;

b. COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - ALL GOVERNMENTAL
FUND TYPES;

c. COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,"
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
GENERAL AND SPECIAL REVENUE FUND TYPES
(AND SIMILAR GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES FOR
WHICH ANNUAL BUDGETS HAVE BEEN LEGALLY
ADOPTED). NOTE: WHEN NO LEGAL BUDGET IS
REQUIRED OR ADOPTED, THE FOOTNOTES SHOULD
DISCLOSE THIS FACT AND THIS FINANCIAL
STATEMENT IS NOT REQUIRED;

d. COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS (OR EQUITY/FUND
BALANCE), ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES; AND

@ e. COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW - ALL
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES?

-133 NONGOVERNMENT ENTITIES

a. BALANCE SHEET;

b. STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSE;

c. STATEMENT OF RETAINED EARNINGS, EQUITY OR

FUND BALANCE; and

10 d. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW.

REFERENCE ‘NOTES: (DETAIL FOR DEFICIENCIES, FOLLOWUP ACTION, ETC.)
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N/A _YES _NO REF

5, IF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE PREPARED IN
(8)d) ACCORDANCE WITH A GOMPREHENSIVE BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
OTHER THAN GAAP:

A-128 GOVERNMENT ENTITIES

ARE THE STATEMENTS PREPARED ON A BASIS OF
ACCOUNTING REQUIRED BY A GOVERNMENTAL REGULATORY
AGENCY HAVING JURISDICTION OVER THE ENTITY, THE
CASH BASIS OR MODIFIED CASH BASIS HAVING
SUBSTANTIAL SUPPORT?

A-133 NONGOVERNMENT ENTITIES

ARE THE STATEMENTS PREPARED ON ANOTHER
COMPREHENSIVE BASIS OF ACCOUNTING WHICH
IS CLEARLY IDENTIFIED (I.E., CASH BASIS)?

INCLUDING CFDA NUMBERS FOR A-128 OR A-1337?
(CIRCLE ONE)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DO ANY NOTES REQUIRE FmHA FOLLOWUP ACTION, I.E.,
MATERIAL VIOLATIONS, FRAUD, ABUSE, OR ILLEGAL ACTS,
NONCOMPLIANCE PLUS ANY OF THE AUDITOR’S
RECOMMENDATIONS? INCLUDE UNRESOLVED ITEMS FROM®
PRIOR YEARS.

st. IS THERE A "SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE"

ARE COMMENTS PROVIDED BY THE RECIPIENT ON AUDITOR
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS, INCLUDING A PLAN FOR
CORRECTIVE ACTION TAKEN OR PLANNED AND COMMENTS ON
THE STATUS OF CORRECTIVE ACTION TAKEN ON PRIOR
FINDINGS?

a. IF CORRECTIVE ACTION IS NOT NECESSARY, A
STATEMENT DESCRIBING THE REASON IT IS NOT,
SHOULD ACCOMPANY THE AUDIT REPORT.

b. A MANAGEMENT DECISION SHOULD BE MADE WITHIN
6 MONTHS AFTER RECEIPT OF THE REPORT BY FmHA, IF
RESPONSIBLE FOR THE AUDIT RESOLUTION.

REFERENCE NOTES: (DETAIL FOR DEFICIENCIES, FOLLOWUP ACTIONS, ETC.)
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N/A YES NO REF

FINANCTAL, ANALYSIS ITEMS

9. DEFICIT FUND BALANCES OR RETAINED EARNINGS OF
INDIVIDUAL FUNDS, ESPECIALLY THE FmHA FINANCED
PROJECT.

10. OVERALL DEFICIT (NEGATIVE BALANCES) EQUITY/FUND
BALANCES OR RETAINED EARNINGS.

11, SIGNIFICANT POSITIVE BALANCES IN EQUITY/FUND BALANCE
OR RETAINED EARNINGS. (THIS COULD INDICATE
EXCESSIVE USER FEES AND REVIEWER MAY WANT TO
IDENTIFY FOR FOLLOWUP.)

12. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES FROM PREVIOUS YEAR IN:

a. INDIVIDUAL ITEMS OF CURRENT ASSETS;

b. INDIVIDUAL ITEMS OF CURRENT LIABILITIES;

c. LONG-TERM DEBT;

d. NET INCOME/LOSS;

e. USER FEES, HOSPITAL OCCUPANCY, ETC.; and

f. OTHER.

13. BASED ON THE REVIEWER'S KNOWLEDGE, ARE THERE ANY
INSTANCES OF NONCOMPLIANCE WHICH ARE NOT DISCLOSED
IN THE AUDIT.

14. ARE THERE MANAGEMENT OR ORGANIZATIONAL PROBLEMS OF
WHICH YOU ARE AWARE?

REFERENCE NOTES: (DETAIL FOR DEFICIENCIES, FOLLOWUP ACTIONS, ETC.)
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DESK REVIEW GUIDE
FOR AUDITS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
OMB CIRCULARS A-128 AND A-133

o Organization Name:

o City County

o Type of Organization: /7 Public Body /77 Indian Tribe /=7 Nonprofit

TYPE OF LOAN

o Type of Assistance: /7 Grant /7 Insured /7 Guaranteed+*

*Name and Address of Lender:

Audit Period: To
TYPE OF AUDIT
, Date Data Entered
Reguired Received Date Due*+* Date Received in RCFTS
/ / A-128 / / :

L7 A-133 [7

L7

(other)

**Thirteen months from end of fiscal year.

Name of: Wi / Cognizant/Agency / / Oversight Agency / / N/A
Yes No N/A

0 Letter received from Cog./Oversight Agency?

o Does letter require FmHA followup?

o Did we follow through to completion?
(attach all above correspondence)

AS A RESULT OF THIS REVIEW, I HAVE REACHED THE FOLLOWING CONCLUSION:
Acceptable and requires no followup.

Acceptable with minor followup with (auditor)/(borrower)

1010

Unacceptable due to significant inadequacies.
(will require letter to auditor and/or borrower)

NOTE: Attach copies of all correspondence to and from borrower/auditor,
record of telephone conversations, etc., on followup action.

SIGNATURE OF REVIEWER TITLE DATE
(03-20-91) PN 160
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1. DID AUDITOR USE GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS (GAGAS)

2. AUDITOR’S REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (OPINION):

NOTE: A-128 AND A-133 DO NOT REQUIRE THE

PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING
PRINCIPLES (GAAP). HOWEVER, IF THERE 1S A
VARIANCE FROM GAAP, THE AUDIT REPORT SHOULD
STATE THE NATURE OF THE VARIANCE AND FOLLOW
PROFESSIONAL GUIDANCE FOR REPORTING ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

AUDIT CONDUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY
ACCEPTED AUDITING STANDARDS (GAAS);

STATEMENTS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES (GAAP);

STATEMENTS PREPARED ON A BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
OTHER THAN GAAP (I.E., CASH, MODIFIED CASH); and

o DOES AUDITOR SUFFICIENTLY DESCRIBE THIS OTHER
BASIS?

IS OPINION OR DISCLAIMER EXPRESSED?

o IF QUALIFIED, IS IT CLEAR WHICH FINDINGS
RESULT IN THE QUALIFICATION?

3. AUDITOR'’S SUPPLEMENTAL REPORTS (OPINICONS) ON:

REFERENCE

INTERNAL CONTROLS IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS;

INTERNAL CONTROLS IN ACCORDANCE WITH A-128/A-133;
(CIRCLE ONE)

COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS;

COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH A-128/A-133; and
(CIRCLE ONE)

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
A-128/A-133. (CIRCLE ONE)

N/A _YES __NO

REF

NOTES: (DETAIL FOR DEFICIENCIES, FOLLOWUP ACTIONS, ETC.)
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: N/A YES NG REF
4, 1IF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE PREPARED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GAAP, ARE THE FOLLOWING INCLUDED:
A-128 GOVERNMENT ENTITIES
a. COMBINED BALANCE SHEET-ALL FUND TYPES AND
ACCOUNT GROUPS;
b. COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - ALL GOVERNMENTAL
FUND TYPES;
¢. COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
GENERAL AND SPECIAL REVENUE FUND TYPES
(AND SIMILAR GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES FOR
WHICH ANNUAL BUDGETS HAVE BEEN LEGALLY
ADOPTED). NOTE: WHEN NO LEGAL BUDGET IS
REQUIRED OR ADOPTED, THE FOOTNOTES SHOULD
DISCLOSE THIS FACT AND THIS FINANCIAL
STATEMENT IS NOT REQUIRED; .
d. COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS (OR EQUITY/FUND
BALANCE), ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES; AND
e. COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW - ALL
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES.
A-133 NONGOVERNMENT ENTITIES
a. BALANCE SHEET;
b. STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSE:
c. STATEMENT OF RETAINED EARNINGS, EQUITY OR
FUND BALANCE; and
d. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW.
REFERENCE NOTES: (DETAIL FOR DEFICIENCIES, FOLLOWUP ACTION, ETC.)

(03-20-91) PN 160
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A __YES NO REF

5. 1F THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE PREPARED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH A COMPREHENSIVE BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
OTHER THAN GAAP:

A-128 GOVERNMENT ENTITIES

ARE THE STATEMENTS PREPARED ON A BASIS OF
ACCOUNTING REQUIRED BY A GOVERNMENTAL REGULATORY
AGENCY HAVING JURISDICTION OVER THE ENTITY, THE
CASH BASIS OR MODIFIED CASH BASIS HAVING
SUBSTANTIAL SUPPORT?

A-133 NONGOVERNMENT ENTITIES

ARE THE STATEMENTS PREPARED ON ANOTHER
COMPREHENSIVE BASIS OF ACCOUNTING WHICH
IS CLEARLY IDENTIFIED (I.E., CASH BASIS).

6. IS THERE A "SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE" INCLUDING CFDA NUMBERS FOR
A-128 OR A-133. (CIRCLE ONE)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. DO ANY NOTES REQUIRE FmHA FOLLOWUP ACTION, I.E.,
MATERIAL VIOLATIONS, FRAUD, ABUSE, OR ILLEGAL ACTS,
NON COMPLIANCE PLUS ANY OF THE AUDITOR'S
RECOMMENDATIONS. INCLUDE UNRESOLVED ITEMS
FROM PRIOR YEARS.

8. ARE COMMENTS PROVIDED BY THE RECIPIENT ON AUDITOR
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS, INCLUDING A PLAN FOR
CORRECTIVE ACTION TAKEN OR PLANNED AND COMMENTS ON
THE STATUS OF CORRECTIVE ACTION TAKEN ON PRIOR
FINDINGS.

a. IF CORRECTIVE ACTION IS NOT NECESSARY, A
STATEMENT DESCRIBING THE REASON IT IS NOT,
SHOULD ACCOMPANY THE AUDIT REPORT.

~ b. A MANAGEMENT DECISION SHOULD BE MADE WITHIN
6 MONTHS AFTER RECEIPT OF THE REPORT BY FmHA,
IF RESPONSIBLE FOR THE AUDIT RESOLUTION.

REFERENCE NOTES: (DETAIL FOR DEFICIENCIES, FOLLOWUP ACTIONS, ETC.)
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N/A YES NO REF

FINANGCIAL ANALYSIS ITEMS

9. DEFICIT FUND BALANCES OR RETAINED EARNINGS OF
INDIVIDUAL FUNDS, ESPECIALLY THE FmHA FINANCED
PROJECT.

10. OVERALL DEFICIT (NEGATIVE BALANCES) EQUITY/FUND
BALANCES OR RETAINED EARNINGS.

11. SIGNIFICANT POSITIVE BALANCES IN EQUITY/FUND BALANCE
OR RETAINED EARNINGS (THIS COULD INDICATE EXCESSIVE
USER FEES AND REVIEWER MAY WANT TO IDENTIFY FOR
FOLLOWUP) .

12. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES FROM PREVIOUS YEAR IN:

a. INDIVIDUAL ITEMS QF CURRENT ASSETS;

b. INDIVIDUAL ITEMS OF CURRENT LIABILITIES;

c. LONG-TERM DEBT,;

d. NET INCOME/LOSS;

e. USER FEES, HOSPITAL OCCUPANCY, ETC.; and

f. OTHER.

13. BASED ON THE REVIEWER'S KNOWLEDGE, ARE THERE ANY
INSTANCES OF NONCOMPLIANCE WHICH ARE NOT DISCLOSED
IN THE AUDIT?

14. ARE THERE MANAGEMENT OR ORGANIZATIONAL PROBLEMS OF
WHICH YOU ARE AWARE?

REFERENCE NOTES: (DETAIL FOR DEFICIENCIES, FOLLOWUP ACTIONS, ETC.)

(03-20-91) PN 160
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OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND For Further Information Contact: - Housing and urban development HUD
BUDGET Marvin E. Saunders. Financial districts.
Management Division, Office of ::ﬂ( an: rucreation districts ... gg'lr
Federal Agencies Responeidie for Management and Budget, Washington, rt authorities
Cost Negotiation and Audit of State DC 20503, (202) 395-3993. School districts ED

and Local Governments; Republication

{Editorial Note: The following document
was originslly published at page 52406 in the
issve of Monday, December 23, 1965. In that
publication, the list of cognizant agency
assignments for the State of Missouri was
omitted and the asterisks in the list were not
printed correctly. The corrected document is
reprinted below in its entirety.]

Aaency: Office of Management and
Budget, Financial Management Division.

acnow: Fins! notice.

suMMARY: This notice transmits a
revised list of Federal agencies
responsible for administering the
provisions of OMB Circular A-87, “Cost
Principles for State and Local
Governments,” and OMB Circular A~
128, “Audits of State and Local
Governments.”

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Marvin E. Saunders, Financial
Management Division, (202) 395-3993.

joha j. Lordan,
Deputy Associate Director for Financial
Management.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
Office of Management and Budget

Federal Agencies Responsible for Cost
Negotiation and Audit of State and
Local Governments

Agency: Office of Management and
Budget.

Action: Notice of Cognizant Ageney
Assignments.

Summary: This notice transmits a
revised list of Federal agencies
responsibie for administering the
provisiong of OMB Circular A-87, “Cost
Principles for State and Local :
Governments,” and OMB Circular A-
128, “Audits of State and Local
Governments.”

In the past OMB has assigned
cognizance separately for cost
allocation and for audit. The revised list
combines the assignments and makes
one Federal agency responsible for both
requirements. Federal ogencies assigned
cognizance under this notice shall
remain cognizant {or a period of three
years.

The revised list replaces cognizant
agency assignments published in the
Federal Register on February 28, 1980,
and October 8, 1980. The revised list
aiso replaces audit assignments for local
governments included in the Director of
OMB's Memorandum to Departments
and Agencies dated March 2. 1982,

*% Oversight Agencies only become involved in the A-128

Supplemental Information: On
February 27, 1985, OMB requested
comments from the major grantmaking
sgencies on a proposed revision to the
cognizant agency assignments.
Comments received from the agencies
were analyzed and considered in
developing the revised list included in
this notice.

The revised list assigns cognizance
under Circulars A-87 and A-128 for
most governmental units included in the
1980 and 1982 lists. Where
organizational changes have occurred at
the State and local levels, appropriate
cognizant agency assignments have
been made for the new government
entities. Cognizant agency assignments

. have been made for all States, including

State agencies. Térritorial governments.
Indian tribal governments, and targer
local governments are also included.
Those State departments and iocal units
of government not listed should desl
with the Federal agency providing them
the most funds.

Generally, the new assignments make
the same Federal agency responsible for
cost negotiation and for audit. The only
exception is for statewide cognizance.
Under Circular A-87, the Department of
Health and Human Services has
negotiated statewide cost allocation
plans for all States, plus the District of
Columbia and Puerto Rico. OMB sees no
reason for change. Consequently, in
many cases the Federal agencies
assigned statewide responsibility for
cost negotiation and the lead agency *
for audit will be different,

The following Federal agencies will
continue to be responsible for sudit and
approval of cost sllocation plans and

§eneral oversight of single audits.

GENERAL OVERSIGHT AGENCIES

Indian tribal governments ......................... DOl
Territorial governments ...........oceceevemmeeenene DOI
Special districts:
Airport authorities : DOT
Economic development districts....... DOC

Hospital, library. and health dis- HHS
tricts.

' Lead agencies for audit are designated in the list
by un asterisk. For local governments the asterisk
also indicates the Federal sgency responsible for
negotiating cost allocation plans. Federal agen.ies
assigned as fead agencies should represent the
interest of other Fedcral audit agen..ies in carrying
out the cognizant agency responsibilities for single
sudit of Stute and local governments. Federal
agencies assigned sudit cognizance for Stat» and
local depurtmentai units shall cooperate with and
assiat the lead agency in corrying out the
requirement for the sinele andil.

Transit districts.......vicenecrescssssensesinse. DOT
Water and sewer districts........onue. EPA

Because of frequent changes in
Federal agency funding levels of State
and local recipients requiring changes in
cognizant assignments, several agencies
have suggested that the term of the
cognizance assignments be fixed. OMB ,
agrees that this would be usefu and has
established the period of assignments at
three years. During that time cognizant
agcncies requiring help in accomplishing
its assignments may request assistance
from other agencies. However, the
assigned cognizant agency shall
continue to be responsible under this
directive. After three years the Federal
agency or the recipient may request
OMB to consider a change in the
cognizant assignment if circumstances
warrant.

James C. Miller [il.

Director.

COGNIZANT AGENCY ASSIGNMENTS FOA COST
ALLOCATION UNDER OMB CIRCULAR A-87
AND FOR SINGLE AUDIT UNDER OMB Cincu-
LAR A-128

Cognaamt
Fedara
agency
ALASAMA
Suils agencres:
Agng G HHS
Agncuttute and industry R .1 USOA
Archeves and History. oot
Cavit Dntorse FEMA
Cosrservation and N i Fhslory oot
[~ 4 o0y
ton, ED
Educainn-voc Rarad Service.. { ED
Envrurimential Manzgement
Forcatry C ion )
(=2 TR X6 OO
Hgnw ay
Ind i Relations. ooL
Labor 108
Lew Ert Pianring Ag s v ¥}
Markcal Sarvces A HHS
Wihtary 000
Pranmng and Federai Programe.................o...| WUD
Pubic Health HHS
Youth Services ]
Counties:
Catoun HHS
Danas . HuS
Elowsh. HHS
Mousiun HHS
Jottorson.. EPA
A s
M "M
MODHB .....ccovvnevicrecaeres casinrraen HMS
Morigomery .. EPA
Morgsn HHS
Tekadege .. HHS
Tuscsiooss’ oot
Waher e . WK

audit process on request. Otherwise they play no active

part.
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COGHIZANT AGENCY ASSIGNMENTS FOR COST
ALLOCATION UnDER OMB Cmcuanr A-87
AND FOR SINGLE AUDIT UNDER OMB CGircy-

COGMIZANT AGENSY ASSIGNMENTS FOR COST
ALLOCATION UNDER OMB C/IRCULAR A-87
AND FOR SINGLE AUD:T UNDEN OAB CiRcy-

COGMIZANT AGENCY ASSIGNMENTS Fonr CosT
ALLOCATION UNDER OMB Oacuar A-87
AND FOR SIMGLE AUOIT UNDER OMB Circu-

LAR A-128—Continued LAR A-128-—Continued AR A-128—Continued
H ; Cogrizant
Com : Cograms o
agancy i agecy sgency
1
Sod . EFA Hoa/ MHumen Serv I s
HUO Washings - & HHE Humen Resourcey/ Aeetons. e | HHS
s Cives: Law and Justics " ooy
oot Fort Serethy — v oo
HO Lithe Rock: ) Sen B e
HIO C boL San Diego HHS
{m0 Humen R ot HID Sen Joacus HHS
Parka oo San Luis Cbuapo Hns
North Ltwe Rock EPA San Mao. HNS
Sante Cnax s
00 CaAromaa by by
.4 DO, Sixte agencIex: Signisiams HHS
o Aging. HHS® Tulgre. HHS
- ED AR EPA All other HnS
P USDA Alcohot andt Drug Abuee Progrerrs ... HHS Coes
oo C ~ et EPA Algmede +o
HHS [ [ Alharnbra | HHS
"ws Oevelopmentsl Sennce L HHS Anahel +HHS
Y & e Buncees Ovvidops . DOC Beoxersheid EPA
ooL E tED Bertastey . O
000 Emergency Sérvices Office ... | FEMA 8 HHS
NARTSE R SCUITES .. oo e e 201 Develop oo Bune. L, ]
Salety 1 000 Enery C ! COE Carson por:
Tranaporaton s Puohe Faciue..—.....—..; DOT F HO Comp o
Vocantrm Rerapd . Y Fuh and Game 1 DO Downey. HAS
Countwr: Graswer Arcnorage | S Foxd ad -2 USDA Fi HUD
Cises. Anzherago HS Forestry USOA Fulleron, MM
- G 's Ottce [» o] Grove HMS
Agican Saon Health Services g [
Stale spnces: AS dopirtmonts ard agonces | OO8 L ',lﬂﬂ" snity Dwvelop HUQ Heywerd. HUD
smacna el o v e
t v, S
Statc Aencies: Momtal Health HHS tong Beach R0
Comrectons 1 0CY Miitary Duper 00o Los Angelex
€ Security =S Parks and Rocreanon e e ] Arport oY
Ecucanon ED Post S y Education Ci £ Buking and Sefety . NJD
Emergency and MiMary Altairs...... ... DOD Panaing and Aesearcls Oics .. oo IO P Ow [+ 2
Game sna Fah. oot [3:] Counclt . — oor
Go-emor's Otice oct AEIATHS AQINCY ... e oo 5 EPA Fire Sorvi FEMA
HaWm Servi 4 P Sociai Serwces HHS Gonersl Serve o
industnat C , O Soud Wasss Varvgerand Bowrd .. e et gh I Authority MO
Larvy 1 US0A Transporsaon 3 \Mayor's Qice. . oo
N Imiouckr , 00t ‘ Avers. vA s e 5 o
Publz Satety 1 OO Water Resoarces Conwot Bowd . i EPA Per ol oo
State Pars . 0O Youlh Ault.orey. HHS Pubkc Works =)
Transgoraeon. i poT Caunees Rede: Agency o
Courhex H Alwrrede. Tranepor oorT
Coutvae. ;g Dt A . S o
Mancops LV L kTN S— - ] p D
Pry... -y Plerewrg MUO Pao AlD EPA
ol M-S Pr oQJ Pa _ v e
Codw : Shedt. __..... ooy o Wo.
- i Sooe S ] i 3 IO -
r‘_ ~ - : oo Strast. gg Reversde. o
Y oD < MUD Corws Costa.
Housng j D Frow s — sy
Haman R A ¢ DOL Koy HHS San Diege: .
Parks and ROCHMBON ... e e { oor s - < 00x%.
Potice ' DO Cammursty 30 Senior Cibzers) Sarvices.._...} HHS® Pl HIO
Pubvc Warks : 0O7 v * Coveop D —— D
Sewer Uity | EPA Connts. . | OO 1 pas
Tranen cor [P R L — Uniihee 1.
FUCBON .o s ML e Sarvies s e
i 4
) i ; ::;u reewth 4‘ g oo
Anantag i s fon usoa e
Steie agecex L N S 37 1 o~
Conecs LTn Puoicwoms . ___________|oat o
Eduraton L EC : 00T Ty
Emeroency § Omcn ! FEwA {004 ooy
Enargy OMce : DOE S YEDA
Foreswy C: ! usow s forgg
Game a3 Fish Conwmeian ... ... ... OOI 1
G ‘s Oice ; oo - ogr o
Heah : - Hg ; OOJ S
Highwey 300 TIEPEDENBIR e .. oo eerd DOT ~; OO e
Faurngn Ser ) vy g .
Labor t QoL EnwnTentsl ARrs/ PSRN .o ...t IO oo
Natwsal and Cutursl Heveg®. ... DOI - HH8
Parks ot Tovrem et DO Latind e
Pelu'ma Conesl end EOOIORY e o) EPR e e
Workery' Comp I i poL Jre o
v Ay, vA i e
Countres: . HHS
Jofter (Lo ] San desnerding: i 2 . 3
o cevre waveere <ou s soetmarerate: e ] Cormrmusty Dovelopment ... ..o e} W ]
LYY Y T Environmentst Pubsc Warks ... EPAE -
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tAR A-128—-Continued LAR A-128—Continued LAR A-128--Continued
r.ogmzant
e o Fogurar
spency sgency sgency
Covomeo n: Hoven: Teansn Autiverity ggt
< " HJO* Waler a0 Sower ........... A
Siae sponeies: SO & €0 Pasco ooy
PR APesty €0 Human & g :::Ie nug
Pokce : "
proorislibrey ot Proic Works EPA 8 oot
Inatilutions. HHS® Swumiord N m Vohrsia %
Labor and Empley oot Wersrbury HUD Cibes:
':M ' m, :g? Towns: Gainsaville ! HUD
Health S Greenwich HHS fon Lauderdele | EPA
ic 5o ot West ¢ ] HUD Hasloo i HHS
Puthc Ltibes Commsion oot DELAWARE pomeiiar ; o
Siaw Piannung and Budgeting Offica .1 HUD s“."_ Sgencas: USOA Qande, ey
Counves: Commurty ARSNS ..o cnen] DOC B P - HUD
Acams HHS Employment Security 0oL Tobe EPA
Aranah HHS G s Oftice DOy Tamoa £PA
& Paso: HHS Megxn and Socia! Se HHS West Paim Beach HUD
Parks DO Nasonsl Guerd % Geonaia
Secisl Servis Mg Menanl & and Eovi %! Conwl.| DOI Swie sgencies:

! HHS Pubic in €0 AgrCn usoa*
Amer HHS St oo Community Aftass ooJ
P 00T | camenen oot Eoveat e
Pusbio HHS Ko s Forestry C ; USOA
‘Weud - HHS Sow Caste HUO G ;Pmn g§

g ' : % EPA Highwaty Satety OfICS ...ccomeememessromssrsrassscnssos|
Cotorado Springs: ooT Citisa: Wimingion. WO Human R HMS
sty snd T
Community Developmen . caeee.} HUD Ot~ oF CoLumeia Ledor ond Traoe ‘;OJ?
¢ Authority wo* Suie spencies: Nanrs! A 001
. Parks and Recrestion... g& -Correcuons o0 Offencier Renabiktation bay
Police Ermph bt Tl S
Puokc Worke oo Hauarg ané Commuity D Rub e Sty e T 00
Utiiies/Lilties Authority EPA Humen Ser HHS T oor
Mayor's Offics gg.lo Urwversity Reg Soard n:s
Arpont ooT* Servi v
Humen My ' HHS Public Schools .. ED . Bobb. S
Parts e gou Pubic Works Dot Cobb. E:s
Pubiic Works PA [ ; ool oh
Tranaporaton oo Fuonoa Dovghery s
4o, .
HHR State sgencies: Fioys HHS
Commctiour HUO :i-nn m
Siste agermiox: - .- Agnoutture and C Sor USDA Fuhon ..
Aging HuS < . X Musaogee e
Civicren andd Youth Servioss. N;usgA g"‘“"’“' i ED* m D
| vwronments tion | EPA Albeny
:m DOVIpMOnt o] cl;m Healh .n: Rehabiitative Services. e HHS Couns. o
-d'm' gp A Labor and Employment gg;" Ermvironment and SYeeIS...m. . ccmemannecini ’E‘Zg
m‘ Law Ent Humen covssessesnach
m' ool Miliury Aftairs 000 Mayor's Office [+0 B
i Cormmismon :&s N ' A oo Parts and A oo
Ho X oy Sun €D Puiic Setety DoC
Humen B : plovs an oot Guas
1nCOME MEMAONRNDS e e :’; Auso HHS S1e0 sgencies: Al departmentr ~~3 sgencies.....| OO!
Menial Hoath HHS v oo, Hawad
Pokcy end Menegoment Office S Cade ooT normey G ooy
Pusic Satety o0y Owal/ - EPA BUOPH 81G FINNON oo eeermemseran] HOD
Traneponston. rdd E ; O Commerce and Consumes Attars. .| DOC.
Vetorans Home and Hespitel ... ... VA h HHS O o0
Coes: Laks MHS £o &
9 Ho Les D G s Oce e
Harttore: Leon oL Heakh e
Agng ooL ! ooL Labor and incusinal Relesons 0oL
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Orange ooL Pianning and € o
Heatth/Humen Servie HHS Paim Beach: Sociel Services and Houmng. k]
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COGNIZANT AGENCY ASSIGNMENTS =GR COST
ALLOCATION UnDER OMB CiRCuuar A-87
AND FOR SINGLE AUDIT UNDER OMB CiRCu-

H
H
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CUGNIZANT AGENCY ASSIGNMENTS FOR COSTY
ALLOCATION UNDER OMB CIRCULAR A-87

AND FOR SINGLE AUDIT UNDER OMB Circu-

LAR A-128—Continusd LAR A-128--Continucd LaR A-128-—Continued
Coonizant + Coanizant
Fecaeal Feoerst Feawa!
agency apency sgency
1
Police | oo Ermpl and Traning . oo St Joseph s
o A ' DO BN/ HUNGT SONCS oo} HHS Tip { g,
Pubiic Works EPA° Housing : w0 M o
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Employ ooL Oecatw i MHS T rianen } DOT
Fish and Gama 0O East St. Lows 1 MHS Fort Wayne i EPA
G s Oftice HHS E L Gary i
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Mistonical S o Oak Park (] “anapoks § Vo]
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REVIEW OF AUDIT REPORTS
DESK REVIEW GUIDE
FmHA /GAGAS AUDITS

(FOR GROSS ANNUAL INCOME)

(Instructions)
Contents
©  Pages
Part 2 Instructions 1-8
Part 2A Work Guide 1-5

PURPOSE: The purpose of this desk review guide is to provide a structured
approach to the analysis process in order to determine that audit reports meet the
requirements of Government Auditing Standards (1988 Revisions), often referred to
as Generally Accepted Govermment Auditing Standards (GAGAS) and the FmHA Audit
Program. This guide is also designed to help identify and record deficiencies in
borrower operations, and provide consistency of analysis for the entities required
to submit audits.

APPLICABILITY: The use of this guide applies only to audits based upon annual
gross income (including OMB Circular A-110) as required by regulations. It does
not apply to Audits performed in accordance with OMB Circulars A-128 and A-133.
For these reviews, use Part 1 of this guide.

DESCRIPTION: This guide was designed, to the extent possible, to be a self-
contained document, by asking questions to support the results of the desk review.
The questions are organized by categories, with four possible answers to each
question. They are: Not Applicable (N/A), (YES), (NO), and Reference (REF).

When checking the REF column, the appropriate question number should be entered at
the bottom of the page and an explanatory note made. However, any note should be
made, which aids in the analysis process, and further supports the review, even if
no followup is required.

The grouping of questions are as follows:

QUESTION NO

o Auditor’'s Use of Audit Publications 1-2
o Auditor’s Reports (Opinions) 3-4
o Financial Statements 5-7
o Notes to the Financial Statements 8
o Financial Analysis Items 9-12
o Miscellaneous Items 13-14
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All questions should be answered, giving consideration to the information obtained
from borrower and auditor interviews, and telephone conversations.

Page 4 of this part (desk review guide) provides a place to record the overall
results of the review. The guide should remain attached to the audit reviewed,
together with all correspondence, notes on telephone calls, etc. (DOCUMENT THE
FILE).

The FmHA Audit Program (December 1989 version) contains a list of pertinent
auditing publications, commonly used abbreviations, and FmHA regulations for the
various financial assistance programs.

Reference Helps For Questions

(:) Name only required for guaranteed loans.
(:) RCFTS Screen CPO4.

(:) Upon completion of the review, the final result should be recorded.
The "acceptable/unacceptable" conclusion of the review process refers
to the audit and its presentation and the results of FmHA's analysis
of the borrower's operation.

(:) Also referred to as Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards"
’ (GAGAS) and U.S. General Accounting Office (GAO) "Yellow Book," (1988
Revision).

The FmHA Audit Program includes the use of GAGAS which also incorporates
- various American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA)
standards.

The auditor’s opinion letter will include statements to answer these
questions. The acronyms GAAS and GAAP will not appear but the words

will be spelled out. Additional information may be contained in the notes
to the financial statements.

©® ©® O

GAGAS requires separate reports on internal controls and compliance.
These reports will usually be located after the notes to financial
statements.

©

For government entities the audit should contain the financial
statements as titled. However, Special Purpose Districts which have
only one ‘activity (Fund) such as a Water District, will not have
multiple balance sheets, etc.

Cash Flow statements only required on or after 1-1-89

®@©

Non-GAAP financial statements will usually be presented on the "cash

basis." This will also be noted in the auditors opinion letter and the

notes to the financial statements. Note: Some public bodies, because of

a special requirement, such as population criteria, are not legally

required to publish accrual basis financial statements. Also some small
nonprofit organizations may present their financial statements on the cash
-receipts and disbursements basis and the auditor will say in the opinion
letter that the "...financial statements referred to above present fairly...."
These presentations are acceptable to FmHA.
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. Comparative financial statements are a requirement of the FmHA Audit
Program (December 1989) and are in addition to GAGAS for non-OMB
circular audits.

(:2 The discovery of indications of fraud, waste, abuse or illegal acts in
the FmHA financed projects should normally have been reported in writing
to the appropriate USDA OIG Regional Inspector General and the FmHA
District Director prior to the published audit report.

(:) The financial analysis items are not all inclusive but listed in broad

categories. You should note all specifics for items which you believe
require followup.
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DESK REVIEW GUIDE ~
(FmHA/GAGAS Audits For Gross Annual Income)

o Organization Name:

o City County

o Type of Organization: [7 Public Body [—7 Indian Tribe /7 Nonprofit

TYPE OF LOAN
o Type of Assistance: =7 Grant 7 Direct [ 7 Guaranteed*
(:)* Name and address of lender:
Audit Period: To
Due Date Date Received Date Data
Entered
in RCFTS

(:) AS A RESULT OF THIS REVIEW, I HAVE REACHED THE FOLLOWING CONCLUSION:
/7 Acceptable and requires no followup.
/7 Acceptable with minor followup with (auditor)/(borrower).

/7 Unacceptable due to significant inadequacies.
(will require letter to auditor and/or borrower)

NOTE: Attach copies of all correspondence to and from borrower/auditor,
record of telephone conversations, etc., on followup action.

SIGNATURE OF REVIEWER ITLE DATE



Dea.

. DID AUDITOR USE GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS?

(GAGAS)

. DID AUDITOR USE FmHA AUDIT PROGRAM?

. AUDITOR’S REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(OPINION):

a.

AUDIT CONDUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERAL
ACCEPTED AUDITING STANDARDS (GAAS).

. STATEMENTS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
(GAAP) .

o IF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WERE NOT
INTENDED TO CONFORM TO GAAP BUT ARE
PREPARED ON ANOTHER BASIS (i.e., CASH,
MOD1FIED CASH, ETC). DOES AUDITOR
SUFFICIENTLY DESCRIBE THIS OTHER BASIS?

. 1S OPINION OR DISCLAIMER EXPRESSED?

o IF QUALIFIED, IS IT CLEAR WHICH FINDINGS
RESULT IN THE QUALIFICATION?

AUDITOR'’S REPORTS (OPINIONS) ON:

a.

b.

INTERNAL CONTROLS IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS.

COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS.

FmHA Instruction 1942-A
{(Guide 21 - Part 2)
{(Page 5)

N/A YES NO REF

REFERENCE NOTES: (DETAIL FOR DEFICIENCIES, FOLLOWUP ACTIONS, ETC.)
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

5. 1IF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE PREPARED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GAAP, ARE THE FOLLOWING INCLUDED:

(®) GOVERNMENT ENTITIES

a.

NONGOV

® a.

REFERENCE

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES AND

. ACCOUNT GROUPS;

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - ALL GOVERNMENTAL
FUND TYPES;

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
GENERAL AND SPECIAL REVENUE FUND TYPES

(AND SIMILAR GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES FOR
WHICH ANNUAL BUDGETS HAVE BEEN LEGALLY
ADOPTED). NOTE: WHEN NO LEGAL BUDGET IS
REQUIRED OR ADOPTED, THE FOOTNOTES SHOULD
DISCLOSE THIS FACT AND THIS FINANCIAL
STATEMENT IS NOT REQUIRED;

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS (OR EQUITY/FUND
BALANCE), ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES; AND

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW - ALL
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES.

M I
BALANCE SHEET;
STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSE;

STATEMENT OF RETAINED EARNINGS, EQUITY OR
FUND BALANCE; and

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW,

N/A _YES

NO _REF

NOTES: (DETAIL FOR DEFICIENCIES, FOLLOWUP ACTION, ETC.)
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N/A YES NO _REF

(10 6. IF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE PREPARED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH A COMPREHENSIVE BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
OTHER THAN GAAP:

GOVERNMENT ENTITIES

a. ARE THE STATEMENTS PREPARED ON A BASIS OF
ACCOUNTING REQUIRED BY A GOVERNMENTAL REGULATORY
AGENCY HAVING JURISDICTION OVER THE ENTITY, OR THE
CASH BASIS OR MODIFIED CASH BASIS HAVING
SUBSTANTIAL SUPPORT?

NONGOVERNMENT ENTITIES

b. ARE THE STATEMENTS PREPARED ON ANOTHER
COMPREHENSIVE BASIS OF ACCOUNTING WHICH 1S
CLEARLY IDENTIFIED (I.E., CASH BASIS)?

(:D 7. ARE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PRESENTED ON A COMPARATIVE
BASIS FOR THE CURRENT AND PRIOR YEAR (FmHA AUDIT
PROGRAM, SECTION J.1)?

NOTES TO FINANCTIAL STATEMENTS

<}D 8. DO NOTES REQUIRE FmHA FOLLOWUP ACTION, 1. .E.,
MATERIAL VIOLATIONS, FRAUD, ABUSE, OR ILLEGAL ACTS,
NONCOMPLIANCE, PLUS ANY OF THE AUDITOR'’S
RECOMMENDATIONS? INCLUDE UNRESOLVED ITEMS FROM PRIOR
YEARS.

FINANCTAL ANALYSIS ITEMS

(1) 9. DEFICIT FUND BALANCES OR RETAINED EARNINGS OF
INDIVIDUAL FUNDS, ESPECIALLY THE FmHA FINANCED
PROJECT.

REFERENCE NOTES: (DETAIL FOR DEFICIENCIES, FOLLOWUP ACTIONS, ETC.)
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

OVERALL DEFICIT (NEGATIVE BALANCES) EQUITY/FUND
BALANCES OR RETAINED EARNINGS.

SIGNIFICANT POSITIVE BALANCES IN EQUITY/FUND BALANCE
OR RETAINED EARNINGS (THIS COULD INDICATE EXCESSIVE
USER FEES AND REVIEWER MAY WANT TO IDENTIFY FOR
FOLLOWUP) .

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES FROM PREVIOUS YEAR IN:

a. INDIVIDUAL ITEMS OF CURRENT ASSETS;

b. INDIVIDUAL ITEMS OF CURRENT LIABILITIES;

c. LONG-TERM DEBT;

d. NET INCOME/LOSS;

e. USERS FEES, HOSPITAL OCCUPANCY, ETC.; and

f. OTHER.

ARE THERE MANAGEMENT OR ORGANIZATIONAL PROBLEMS OF
WHICH YOU ARE AWARE?

BASED ON THE REVIEWER'S KNOWLEDGE, ARE THERE ANY
INSTANCES ON NONCOMPLIANCE WHICH ARE NOT DISCLOSED
IN THE AUDIT?

REFERENCE NOTES: (DETAIL FOR DEFICIENCIES, FOLLOWUP

N/A YES _NO REF

ACTIONS, ETC.)
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DESK REVIEW GUIDE
(FmHA/GAGAS Audits For Gross Annual Income)

o Organization Name:
o City County
o Type of Organization: /7 Public Body /7 Indian Tribe /_7/Nonprofit
TYPE OF LOAN
o Type of Assistance: /7 Grant [7 Direct [/ Guaranteed*
* Name and address of lender:
Audit Period: To
Date Due Date Received Date Data
Entered
in RCFTS

AS A RESULT OF THIS REVIEW, 1 HAVE REACHED THE FOLLOWING CONCLUSION:
/7 Acceptable and requires no followup.
/ /] Acceptable with minor followup with (auditor/borrower)

/——7 Unacceptable due t6 significant inadequacies.
(will require letter to auditor and/or borrower)

NOTE: Attach copies of all correspondence to and from borrower/auditor,
record of telephone conversations, etc., on followup action,

SIGNATURE OF REVIEWER TITLE DATE
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1. DID AUDITOR USE GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS?

- Part 2A)

(GAGAS)

2. DID AUDITOR USE FmHA AUDIT PROGRAM?
3. AUDITOR’S REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (OPINION):

a. AUDIT CONDUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERAL
ACCEPTED AUDITING STANDARDS (GAAS);

b. STATEMENTS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING FRINCIPLES

(GAAP); and

(o]

c. 1S OPINION OR DISCLAIMER EXPRESSED.

(o}

4., AUDITOR’S REPORTS (OPINIONS) ON:

a. INTERNAL CONTROLS IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS;

IF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WERE NOT
INTENDED TO CONFORM TO GAAP BUT ARE
PREPARED ON ANOTHER BASIS (i.e., CASH,
MODIFIED CASH, ETC). DOES AUDITOR
SUFFICIENTLY DESCRIBE THIS OTHER BASIS?

IF QUALIFIED, IS IT CLEAR WHICH FINDINGS
RESULT IN THE QUALIFICATION?

and

b. COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS.

REFERENCE

NOTES:

N/A YES NO REF

(DETAIL FOR DEFICIENCIES, FOLLOWUP ACTIONS, ETC.)
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FINANCIAI, STATEMENTS: N/A YES NO REF
5. IF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE PREPARED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GAAP, ARE THE FOLLOWING INCLUDED:
GOVERNMENT ENTITIES

a. COMBINED BALANCE SHEET-ALL FUND TYPES AND
ACCOUNT GROUPS;

b. COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - ALL GOVERNMENTAL
FUND TYPES;

c. COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
GENERAL AND SPECIAL REVENUE FUND TYPES
(AND SIMILAR GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES FOR
WHICH ANNUAL BUDGETS HAVE BEEN LEGALLY
ADOPTED). NOTE: WHEN NO LEGAL BUDGET IS
REQUIRED OR ADOPTED, THE FOOTNOTES SHOULD
DISCLOSE THIS FACT AND THIS FINANCIAL
STATEMENT IS NOT REQUIRED;

d. COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS (OR EQUITY/FUND
BALANCE), ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES; AND

e. COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW - ALL
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES.

NONGOVERNMENT ENTITIES

a. BALANCE SHEET;

b. STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSE;

c. STATEMENT OF RETAINED EARNINGS, EQUITY OR
FUND BALANCE; and

d. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW.

REFERENCE NOTES: (DETAIL FOR DEFICIENCIES, FOLLOWUP ACTION, ETC.)
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6. IF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE PREPARED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH A COMPREHENSIVE BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
OTHER THAN GAAP:

\ NT

a. ARE THE STATEMENTS PREPARED ON A BASIS OF
ACCOUNTING REQUIRED BY A GOVERNMENTAL REGULATORY
AGENCY HAVING JURISDICTION OVER THE ENTITY, OR THE
CASH BASIS OR MODIFIED CASH BASIS HAVING
SUBSTANTIAL SUPPORT?

NONGOVERNMENT ENTITIES

b. ARE THE STATEMENTS PREPARED ON ANOTHER
COMPREHENSIVE BASIS OF ACCOUNTING WHICH 1S
CLEARLY IDENTIFIED? (I.E., CASH BASIS)

7. ARE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PRESENTED ON A COMPARATIVE
BASIS FOR THE CURRENT AND PRIOR YEAR? (FmHA AUDIT
PROGRAM, SECTION J.1)

0 _FINANC TEMEN

8. DO NOTES REQUIRE FmHA FOLLOWUP ACTION, I.E.,
MATERIAL VIOLATIONS, FRAUD, ABUSE, OR ILLEGAL ACTS,
NON COMPLIANCE, PLUS ANY OF THE AUDITOR'S
RECOMMENDATIONS? INCLUDE UNRESOLVED ITEMS FROM PRIOR
YEARS.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS ITEMS
9. DEFICIT FUND BALANCES OR RETAINED EARNINGS OF

INDIVIDUAL FUNDS, ESPECIALLY THE FmHA FINANCED
PROJECT.

REFERENCE NOTES: (DETAIL FOR DEFICIENCIES, FOLLOWUP

ACTIONS,; ETC.)
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N/A YES NO REF

10. OVERALL DEFICIT (NEGATIVE BALANCES) EQUITY/FUND
BALANCES OR RETAINED EARNINGS.

11. SIGNIFICANT POSITIVE BALANCES IN EQUITY/FUND BALANCE
OR RETAINED EARNINGS (THIS COULD INDICATE EXCESSIVE
USER FEES AND REVIEWER MAY WANT TO IDENTIFY FOR
FOLLOWUP) , .

12. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES FROM PREVIOUS YEAR IN:

a. INDIVIDUAL ITEMS OF CURRENT ASSETS;

b. INDIVIDUAL ITEMS OF CURRENT LIABILITIES;

c. LONG-TERM DEBT;

d. NET INCOME/LOSS;

e. USERS FEES, HOSPITAL OCCUPANCY, ETC.; and

f. OTHER.

13. ARE THERE MANAGEMENT OR ORGANIZATIONAL PROBLEMS OF
WHICH YOU ARE AWARE?

14. BASED ON THE REVIEWERS KNOWLEDGE, ARE THERE ANY
INSTANCES ON NONCOMPLIANCE WHICH ARE NOT DISCLOSED
IN THE AUDIT?

REFERENCE NOTES: (DETAIL FOR DEFICIENCIES, FOLLOWUP ACTIONS, ETC.)
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EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT

OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT ANDO BUDGET
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20803

April 12, 1985 CIRCULAR No. A-128

TO THE HEADS OF EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENTS AND ESTABLISHMENTS
SUBJECT: Audits of State and Local Governments.

1. Purpose. This Circular is issued pursuant to the Single
Audit Act of 1984, P.L. 98-502. It establishes audit requirements
for State and local governments that receive Federal aid, and
defines Federal responsibilities for implementing and monitoring
those requirements.

2. Supersession. The Circular supersedes Attachment P, "Audit
Requirements,” of Circular A-102, "Uniform requirements for grants
to State and local governments."

3. Background. The Single Audit Act builds upon earlier efforts
to improve audits of Federal aid programs. The Act requires State
or local governments that receive $100,000 or more a year in
Federal funds to have an audit made for that year. Section 7505
of the Act requires the Director of the Office of Management and
Budget to prescribe policies, procedures and guidelines to
implement the Act. It specifies that the Director shall designate
"cognizant® Federal agencies, determine criteria for making
appropriate charges to Federal programs for the cost of audits,
and provide procedures to assure that small firms or firms owned
and controlled by disadvantaged individuals have the opportunity
to participate in contracts for single audits.

4. Policy. The Single Audit Act requires the following:

a. State or local governments that receive $100,000 or more
a year in Federal financial assistance shall have an audit made in
accordance with this Circular.

b. State or local governments that receive between $25,000
and $100,000 » year shall have an audit made in accordance with
this Circular, or in accordance with Federal laws and regulations
governing the programs they participate in.

C. State or local governments that receive less than
$25,000 a year shall be exempt from compliance with the Act and
other Federal audit requirements. These State and local
governments shall be governed by audit requirements prescribed by
State or local law or regulation.
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d. Nothing in this paragraph exempts State or local
governments from maintaining records of Federal financial
assistance or from providing access to such records to Federal
agencies, as provided for in Federal law or in Circular A-102,
"Uniform requirements for grants to State or local governments. "

S. Definitions. For the purposes of this Circular the following
definitions from the Single Audit Act apply:

a. "Cognizant agency” means the Federal agency assigned by
the Office of Management and Budget to carry out the responsibil-
ities described in paragraph 11 of this Circular.

b. "Federal financial assistance"™ means assistance provided
by a Federal agency in the form of grants, contracts, cooperative
agreements, loans, loan guarantees, property, interest subsidies,
insurance, or direct appropriations, but does not include direct
Federal cash assistance to individuals. It includes awards
received directly from Federal agencies, or indirectly through
other units of State and local governments.

C. "Federal agency" has the same meaning as the term
‘agency' in section 551(1) of Title 5, United States Code.

d. "Generally accepted accounting principles” has tpe'
meaning specified in the generally accepted government auditing
standards.

e. "Generally accepted government auditing standards” means
the Standards For Audit of Government Organizations, Programs,
Activities, and Functions, developed by the Comptroller General,
dated February 27, 198l.

£. *Independent auditor® means:

(1) a State or local government auditor who meets the
independence starndards specified in generally accepted government
auditing standards; or

(2) a public accountant who meets such independence
standards. :

g. "Internal controls" means the plan of organization and
methods and procedures adopted by management to ensure that:

_ (1) resource use is consistent with laws, regulations,
and policies;

(2) resources are safeguarded against waste, loss, and
misuse; and

(3) reliable data are obtained, maintained, and fairly
disclosed in reports, :
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h. "Indian tribe" means any Indian tribe, band, nations, or
other organized group or community, including any Alaskan Native
village or regional or village corporations (as defined in, or
established under, the Alaskan Native Claims Settlement Act) that
is recognized by the United States as eligible for the special
programs and services provided by the United States to Indians
because of their status as Indians.

i. "Local government" means any unit of local government
within a State, including a county, a borough, municipality, city,
town, township, parish, local public authority, special district,
school district, intrastate district, council of governments, and
any other instrumentaltty of local government.

je "Ma jor Federal Assistance Program,® as defined by
P.L. 98-502, is described in the Attachment to this Circular.

k. “Public accountants™ means those individuals who meet
the qualification standards included in generally accepted
government auditing standards for personnel performing government
audits.

1. “"State"™ means any State of the United States, the
District of Columbia, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, the Virgin
Islands, Guam, American Samoa, the Commonwealth of the Northern
Mariana Islands, and the Trust Territory of the Pacific Islands,
any instrumentality thereof, and any multi-State, regional, or
interstate entity that has governmental functions and any Indian
tribe.

m. "Subrecipient® means any person or government
department, agency, or establishment that receives Federal
financial assistance to carry out a program through a State or
local government, but does not include an individual that is a
beneficiary of such a program. A subrecipient may also be a
direct recipient of Federal financial assistance.

6. Scope of audit. The Single Audit Act provides that:

a. The audit shall be made by an independegt_auditor in
accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards
covering financial and compliance audits.

b. The audit shall cover the entire operations of a State
or local government or, at the option of that govermnment, it may
cover departments, agencies or establishments that received,
expended, or otherwise administered Federal financial assistance
during the year. However, if a State or local government receives
$25,000 or more in General Revenue Sharing Funds in a fiscal year,
it shall have an audit of its entire operations. A series of
audits of individual departments, agencies, and establishments for
the same fiscal year may be considered a single audit.
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C, Public hospitals and public colleges and universities
may be excluded from State and local audits and the requirements
of this Circular. However, if such entities are excluded, audits
of these entities shall be made in accordance with statutory
requirements and the provisions of Circular A-110, “Uniform
requirements for grants to universities, hospitals, and other
nonprofit organizations."

d. The auditor shall determine whether:

(1) the financial statements of the government,
department, agency or establishment present fairly its financial
position and the results of its financial operations in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

(2) the organization has internal accounting and other
control systems to provide reasonable assurance that it is
managing Federal financial assistance programs in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations; and

(3) the organization has complied with laws and regqula-
tions that may have material effect on ite financial statements
and on each major Federal assistance program.

7. Frequency of audit. Audits shall be made annually unless the
State or local government has, by January 1, 1987, a constitu-
tional or statutory requirement for less frequent audits. For
those governments, the cognizant agency shall permit biennial
audits, covering both years, if the government so requests. It
shall a'lso honor requests for biennial audits by governments that
have an administrative policy calling for audits less frequent
than annual, but only for fiscal years beginning before January 1,
1987, :

B. Internal control and compliance reviews. The Single Audit
Act requires that the independent auditor determine and report on
whether the organization has internal control systems to provide
reasonable assurance that it is managing Federal assistance
programs in compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

a. Internal control review. In order to provide this
assurance the auditor must make a study and evaluation of internal
control systems used in administering Federal assistance programs.
The study and evaluation must be made whether or not the auditor
intends to place reliance on such systems. As part of this
review, the auditor shall:

(1) Test whether these internal control systems are
functioning in accordance with prescribed procedures.

(2) Examine the recipient's system for monitoring
subrecipients and obtaining and acting on subrecipient audit
reports.



(Exhibit A) (Page 5) FmHA Instruction 1942-A

b. Compliance review. The law also requires the auditor to
determine whether the organization has complied with laws and
regulations that may have a material effect on each major Federal
assistance program.

(1) In order to determine which major programs are to
be tested for compliance, State and local governments shall
identify in their accounts all Federal funds received and expended
and the programs under which they were received. This shall
include funds received directly from Federal agencies and through
other State and local governments.

(2) The review must include the selection and testing
of a representative number of charges from each major Federal
assistance program. The selection and testing of transactions
shall be based on the auditor's professional judgment considering
such factors as the amount of expenditures for the program and the
individual awards; the newness of the program or changes in its
conditions; prior experience with the program, particularly as
revealed in audits and other evaluations (e.g., inspections,
program reviews); the extent to which the program is carried out
through subrecipients; the extent to which the program contracts
for goods or services; the level to which the program is already
subject to program reviews or other forms of independent
oversight; the adequacy of the controls for ensuring compliance;
the expectation of adherence or lack of adherence to the
applicable laws and regulations; and the potential impact of
adverse findinpgs.

(a) In making the test of transactions, the
auditor shall determine whether:

-- the amounts reported as expenditures
were for allowable services, and

- the records show that those who received
services or benefits were eligible to receive them.

(b) In addition to transaction testing, the
auditor shall determine whether:

-- matching requirements, levels of effort
and earmarking limitations were met,
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-- Federal financial reports and claims for
advances and reimbursements contain information that is supported
by the books and records from which the basic financial statements
have been prepared, and

== amounts claimed or used for matching
were determined in accordance with OMB Circular A-87, "Cost
principles for State and local governments," and Attachment F of
Circular A-102, "Uniform requirements for grants to State and
local governments."

(c) The principal compliance requirements of the
largest Federal aid programs may be ascertained by referring to
the Compliance Supplement for Single Audits of State and Local
Governments, issued by OMB and available from the Government
Printing Office. For those programs not covered in the Compliance
Supplement, the auditor may ascertain compliance requirements by
researching the statutes, regulations, and agreements governing
individual programs.

(3) Transactions related to other Federal assistance
programs that are selected in connection with examinations of
financial statements and evaluations of internal controls shall be
tested for compliance with Federal laws and regulations that apply
to such transactions.

9. Subrecipients. State or local governments that receive
Federal financial assistance and provide $25,000 or more of it in
a fiscal year to a subrecipient shall:

a. determine whether State or local subrecipients have met
the audit requirements of this Circular and whether subrecipients
covered by Circular A-110, “Uniform requirements for grants to
universities, hospitals, and other nonprofit organizations," have
met that requirement;

b. determine whether the subrecipient spent Federal
assistance funds provided in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations. This may be accomplished by reviewing an audit of
the subrecipient made in accordance with this Circular, Circular
A-110, or through other means (e.g., program reviews) if the
subrecipient has not yet had such an audit;

, c. ensure that appropriate corrective action is taken
within six months after receipt of the audit report in instances
of noncompliance with Federal laws and regulations;

d. consider whether subrecipient audits necessitate
adjustment of the recipient's own records; and

e. require each subrecipient to permit independent auditors
to have access to the records and financial statements as
necessary to comply with this Circular.
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10, Relation to other audit requirements. The Single Audit Act
provides that an audit made in accordance with this Circular shall
be in lieu of any financial or financial compliance audit required
under individual Federal assistance programs. To the extent that
a single audit provides Federal agencies with information and
assurances they need to carry out their overall responsibilities,
they shall rely upon and use such information. However, a Federal
agency shall make any additional audits which are necessary to
carry out its responsibilities under Federal law and regulation.
Any additional Federal audit effort shall be planned and carried
out in such a way as toc avoid duplication.

a. The provisions of this Circular do not limit. the
authority of Federal agencies to make, or contract for audits and
evaluations of Federal financial assistance programs, nor do they
limit the authority of any Federal agency Inspector General or
other Federal audit official.

b. The provisions of this Circular do not authorize any
State or local government or subrecipient thereof to constrain
Federal agencies, in any manner, from carrying out additional
audits.

c. A Federal agency that makes or contracts for audits in
addition to the audits made by recipients pursuant to this
Circular shall, consistent with other applicable laws and
regulations, arrange for funding the cost of such additional
audits. Such additional audits include economy and efficiency
audits, program results audits, and program evaluations.

11. Cognizant agency responsibilities. The Single Audit Act
provides for cognizant Federal agencies to oversee the
implemertation of this Circular.

a. The Office of Management and Budget will assign
cognizant agencies for States and their subdivisions and larger
local governments and their subdivisions. Other Federal agencies
may participate with an assigned cognizant agency, in order to
fulfill the cognizance responsibilities. Smaller governments not
assigned a cognizant agency will be under the general oversight of
the Federal agency that provides them the most funds whether
directly or indirectly.

b. A cognizant agency shall have the following
responsibilities:

(1) Ensure that audits are made and reports are
received in a timely manner and in accordance with the
requirements of this Circular.

(2) Provide technical advice and liaison to State and
local governments and independent auditors.
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(3) Obtain or make quality control reviews of selected
audits made by non-Federal audit organizations, and provide the
results, when appropriate, to other interested organizations.

(4) Promptly inform other affected Federal agencies and
appropriate Federal law enforcement officials of any reported
illegal acts or irregularities. They should also inform State or
local law enforcement and prosecuting authorities, if not advised
by the recipient, of any violation of law within their
jurisdiction.

(5) Advise the recipient of audits that have been found
not to have met the requirements set forth in this Circular. In
such instances, the recipient will be expected to work with the
auditor to take corrective action. If corrective action is not
taken, the cognizant agency shall notify the recipient and Federal
awarding agencies of the facts and make recommendations for
followup action. Major inadequacies or repetitive substandard
performance of independent auditors shall be referred to
appropriate professional bodies for disciplinary action.

(6) Coordinate, to the extent practicable, audits made
by or for Federal agencies that are in addition to the audits made
pursuant to this Circular; so that the additional audits build upon
such audits.

(7) Oversee the resolution of audit findings that affect
the programs of more than one agency.

12. Illegal acts or irregqularities. If the auditor becomes aware
of illegal acts or other irregularities, prompt notice shall be
given to recipient management officials above the level of involve-
ment. (See also paragraph 13(a)(3) below for the auditor's report-
ing responsibilities.) The recipient, in turn, shall promptly
notify the cognizant agency of the illegal acts or irregularities
and of proposed and actual actions, if any. 1Illegal acts and
irregularities include such matters as conflicts of interest,
falsification of records or reports, and misappropriations of funds
or other assets.

13. Audit Reports. Audit reports must be prepared at the
completion of the audit. Reports serve many needs of State and
local governments as well as meeting the requirements of the Single
Audit Act.

a. The audit report shall state that the audit was made in
accordance with the provisions of this Circular. The report shall
be made up of at least:

(1) The auditor's report on financial statements and on
a schedule of Federal assistance; the financial statements; and a
schedule of Federal assistance, showing the total expenditures for
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each Federal assistance program as identified in the Catal of
Federal Domestic Assistance. Federal programs or grants Egat have
not been assigned a catalog number shall be identified under the
caption "other Federal assistance."

(2) The auditor's report on the study and evaluation of
internal control systems must identify the organization's
significant internal accounting controls, and those controls
designed to provide reasonable assurance that Pederal programs are
being managed in compliance with laws and regulations. It must
also identify the controls that were evaluated, the controls that
were not evaluated, and the material weaknesses identified as a
result of the evaluation.

(3) The auditor's report on compliance containing:

-- a statement of positive assurance with respect
to those items tested for compliance, including compliance with.law
and requlations pertaining to financial reports and claims for
advances and reimbursements;

-- negative assurance on those items not tested;
-- a summary of all instances of noncompliance; and

-~ an identification of total amounts questioned,
if any, for each Federal assistance award, as a result of
noncompliance.

b. The three parts of the audit report may be bound into a
single report, or presented at the same time as separate documents.

c. All fraud abuse, or illegal acts or indications of such
acts,- including all questioned costs found as the result of these
acts that auditors become aware of, should normally be covered in a
separate written report submitted in accordance with paragraph 13f.

d. In addition to the audit report, the recipient shall
provide comments on the findings and recommendations in the report,
including a plan for corrective action taken or planned and com-
ments on the status of corrective action taken on prior findings.
If corrective action is not necessary, a statement describing the
reason it is not should accompany the audit report.

e, The reports shall be made available by the State or local
government for public inspection within 30 days after the
completion of the audit.

£. In accordance with generally accepted government audit
standards, reports shall be submitted by the auditor to the organi-
zation audited and to those requiring or arranging for the audit.
In addition, the recipient shall submit copies of the reports to
each Pederal department or agency that provided PFederal assistance
funds to the recipient. Subrecipients shall submit copies to
recipients that provided them Pederal assistance funds. The
reports shall be sent within 30 days after the completion of the
audit, but no later than one year after the end of the audit period
unless a longer period is agreed to with the cognizant agency.
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g. Recipients of more than $100,000 in Federal funds shall
Submit one copy of the audit report within 30 days after issuance
to a central clearinghouse to be designated by the Office of
Management and Budget. The clearinghouse will keep completed
audits on file and follow up with State and local governments that
have not submitted required audit reports.

h. Recipients shall keep audit reports on file for three
years from their issuance.

14. Audit Resolution. As provided in paragraph 11, the cognizant
agency shall be responsible for monitoring the resolution of audit
findings that affect the programs of more than one Federal agency.
Resolution of findings that relate to the programs of a single
Federal agency will be the responsibility of the recipient and that
agency. Alternate arrangements may be made on a case-by-case basis

by agreement among the agencies concerned.

Resolution shall be made within six months after receipt of
the report by the Federal departments and agencies. Corrective
action should proceed as rapidly as possible.

15. Audit workpapers and reports. Workpapers and reports shall be
retained for a minimum of three years from the date of the audit
report, unless the auditor is notified in writing by the cognizant
agency to extend the retention period. Audit workpapers shall be
made available upon request to the cognizant agency or its designee
or the General Accounting Office, at the completion of the audit.

16, Audit Costs. The cost of audits made in accordance with the
provisions of this Circular are allowable charges to Federal

assistance programs.

a. The charyes may be considered a direct cost or an
allocated indirect cost, determined in accordance with the
provision of Circular A-87. "Cost principles for State and local
governments,"

b. Generally, the percentage of costs charged to Federal
assistance programs for a single audit shall not exceed the
percentage that Federal funds expended represent of total funds
expended by the recipient during the fiscal year. The percentage
may be exceeded, however, if appropriate documentation demonstrates

higher actual cost.

17. sanctions. The Single Audit Act provides that no cost may be

charged to Federal assistance programs for audits required by the
Act that are not made in accordance with this Circular. In cases
of continued inability or unwillingness to have a proper audit,
Federal agencies must consider other appropriate sanctions
including:

-- withholding a percentage of assistance payments
until the audit is completed satisfactorily,
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-~ withholding or disallowing overhead costs, and

-- suspending the Federal assistance agreement until
the audit is made.

18. Auditor Selection. In arranging for audit services State and
local governments shall follow the procurement standards prescribed
by Attachment O of Circular A-102, "Uniform requirements for grants
to State and local governments.® The standards provide that while
recipients are encouraged to enter into intergovernmental agree-
ments for audit and other services, analysis should be made to
determine whether it would be more economical to purchase the
services from private firms. In instances where use of such inter-
governmental agreements are required by State statutes (e.g., audit
services) these statutes will take precedence.

19. Small and Minority Audit Firms. Small audit firms and audit
firms owned and controlled by socially and economically disadvan-
taged individuals shall have the maximum practicable opportunity to
participate in contracts awarded to fulfill the requirements of
this Circular. Recipients of Federal assistance shall take the
following steps to further this goal:

a. Assure that small audit firms and audit firms oyngd and
controlled by socially and economically disadvantaged individuals
are used to the fullest extent practicable.

b. Make information on forthcoming opportunities availab}e.
and arrange timeframes for the audit so as to encourage and facili-
tate participation by small audit firms and audit firms owned and
controlled by socially and economically disadvantaged individuals.

c. Consider in the contract process whether firms competing
for larger audits intend to subcontract with small audit firms and
audit firms owned and controlled by socially and economically
disadvantaged individuals.

d. Encourage contracting with small audit firms or audit
firms owned and controlled by socially and economically disadvan-
taged individuals which have traditionally audited government
programs and, in such cases where this is not possible, assure that
these firms are given consideration for audit subcontracting

opportunities.

e. Encourage contracting with consortiums of small audit
firms as described in paragraph (a) above when a contract is too
large for an individual small audit firm or audit firm owned and
controlled by socially and economically disadvantaged individuals.

£. Use the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such
organizations as the Small Business Administration in the solicita-
tion and utilization of small audit firms or audit firms owned and
controlled by socially and economically disadvantaged individuals.
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20. Reporting. Each Federal agency will report to the Director of
OMB on or before March 1, 1987, and annually thereafter on the

effectiveness of State and local governments in carrying out the
provisions of this Circular. The report must identify each State
or local government or Indian tribe that, in the opinion of the
agency, is failing to comply with the Circular.

21. Regulations. Each Federal agency shall include the provisions
of this Circular in its regulations implementing the Single Audit
Act.

22. Effective date. This Circular is effective upon publication
and shall apply to fiscal years of State and local governments

that begin after December 31, 1984, Earlier implementation is
encouraged. However, until it is implemented, the audit provisions
of Attachment P to Circular A-102 shall continue to be observed.

23. Inquiries. All questions or inquiries should be addressed to
Financial Management Division, Office of Management and Budget,

telephone number 202/395-3993,

24. Sunset review date. This Circular shall have an independent
policy review to ascertain its effectiveness three years from the

date of issuance.

David A. Stockman
Director
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Circular A-128
Attachment

Definition of Major Program as Provided
in P.L. 98-502

"Major Federal Assistance Program,” for State and local governments
having Pederal assistance expenditures between $100,000 and
$100,000,000, means any program for which Federal expenditures
during the applicable year exceed the larger of $300,000, or 3
percent of such total expehditures.

Where total expenditures of Federal assistance exceed $100,000,000,
the following criteria apply:

Major Federal
Assistance Program
Means any Program

That Exceeds

Total Expenditures of
Federal Financial Assistance
for All Programs

more than but less than
$100 million 1 billion $ 3 million
1 billion 2 billion 4 million
2 billion 3 billion 7 million
3 billion 4 billion 10 million
4 billion 5 billion 13 million
5 billion 6 billion 16 million
6 billion . 7 billion 19 million
over 7 billion 20 million
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Department of Agriculture

REGIONAL INSPECTOR GENERAL (OIG)

CONTACT FOR AUDITS IN:
Myron Hunt Connecticut, Maine,
Regional Inspector General Massachusetts,
U.S. Department of Agriculture New Hampshire,
26 Federal Plaza, Room 1811l New Jersey, New York,
New York, New York 10278 Puerto Rico, Rhode
Telephone: (212) 264-7510 Island, Vermont and

(FTS) 264-7510 the Virgin Islands
Everett L. Mosley Delaware,
Regional Inspector General District of Columbia,
U.S. Department of Agriculture Maryland,
Room 422 Federal Building Pennsylvania,
Hyattsville, Maryland 20782 Virginia,
Telephone: (301) 436-8763 West Virginia
(FTS) 436-8763

Steadie Mixson Alabama, Florida,
Ragional Inspector General Georgia, Kentucky,
U.S. Department of Agriculture Mississippi, North
Room 900, 1447 Peachtree St,.,, N.E. Carolina, South Carolina,
Atlanta, Georgia 30309 Tennessee

Telephone: (404) 347-3675
(FTS) 257-3675

Thomas Heideman Illinois,
Regional Inspector General Indiana,
U.S. Department of Agriculture Michigan,
1 North Wacker Drive, Room 800 Minnesota,
Chicago, Illinois 60606 Ohio,
Telephone: (312) 353-1352 Wisconsin
(FTS) 353-1352
John 0. Leavy Akansas,
Regional Inspector General Louisiana,
U.S. Department of Agriculture New Mexico,
Federal Building ' Oklahoma,
101 S. Main Street, Room 324 Texas

Temple, Texas 76501
Telephone: (817) 774-1430
(FTS) 736~-1430
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

REGIONAL INSPECTOR GENERAL (0IG)

CONTACT

William D. Brossesu

Regional Inspector General

U.S. Department of Agriculture

P.O. Box 293

Kansas City, Missouri 64141

Telephone: (816) 926- 7667
(FTS) 926-7667

James R. Ebbitt
Regional Inspector General
U.S. Department of Agriculture
555 Battery Street, Room 522
San Francisco, California 94111
Telephone: (415) 556-4244

(FTS) 556—-4244

NATIONAL OFFICE CONTACT

Herbert Gruenebaum
National Single Audit Coordinator
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Office of Inspector General
Administration Building - Room 449E
l4th and Independence Avenue, S.W.
Washington, D.C. 20250
Telephone: (202) 382-8490

(FTS) 382-8490

FOR AUDITS IN:

Colorado, Iowa, Kansas,
Missouri, Montana, Nebraska,
North Dakota, South Dakota,
Utah, Wyoming

Alaska, Arizona, California,
Hawaii, Idaho, Nevada,
Oregon, Washington, Trust
Territories of the

Pacific and Territory of
Guam
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